
IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

150 N. MAIN STREET 
IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 

REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 13, 2025 
5:35 P.M. 

Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member 
Neil Docherty, Vice Chair  Steve Robbins, Board Member 
Kim Jorgensen, Secretary Jessica Montoya, Board Member 
Stu Davis, Treasurer John Genord, Board Member  
Joi Kempf, Board Member Barbara Yockey, Mayor   

A G E N D A 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. CONSENT AGENDA – (pgs 3-17)

AGENDA  
     MEETING MINUTES: Informational Meeting and Regular Meeting December 9, 2024 

FINANCIAL REPORTS: through December 31, 2024 
DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report  
DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report 

5. CORRESPONDENCE – (none)
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION (none)
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
A. Municipal Parking Lease Renewals (pgs 19-22)
B. City Services MOU update (pgs 23-25)

10. NEW BUSINESS:
A. 150 Bancroft Incubator Space Request (pgs 27-32)
B. Business Spotlight Podcasts (pgs 33-35)
C. Social District Proposal & Management Plan (pgs 37-58)
D. WinterFest 2024 Financial Report (pgs 59-60)

11. CLOSED SESSION – For the purpose of property acquisition (if needed)

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (pgs 61-67)
13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
15. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director  Posted January 9, 2025 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: February 10, 2025 



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

2



Consent Agenda 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Items Attached: 
a. Meeting Agenda
b. Meeting Minutes

• December 9th Informational Meeting
• December 9th Regular Meeting

c. Financial Reports – Ending December 31, 2024
• DDA Expenditure Report = $ 33,612.27
• Check Register Report = $ 25,239.73
• Credit Statement – Dec 2024
• Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 277,708.32

d. Spreadsheet of FY 2024-25 monthly City administrative transfers –
• December Totals $5,106.65

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation:   Motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

3



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Informational Meeting 
December 9 @ 5:00 PM 

INFORMATIONAL MEETING MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, December 9, 2024, at the Imlay 
City Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Bargen called the meeting to order at 4:58 pm

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL – Executive DDA Director Malzahn called the roll:
Present: Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, John Genord, Kim Jorgensen, Chair Walter Bargen, Mayor Barbara Yockey
(arrived 5:01) Steve Robbins (arrived 5:02 pm), Joi Kempf (arrived 5:05 pm)
Absent: Neil Docherty, Jessica Montoya

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
MOTION by Davis, support by Shattuck to approve the agenda as presented.
All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none

6. NEW BUSINESS
a. Bi-Annual Information Meeting Material

Director Malzahn presented the informational material packet she created and led the Board and 
meeting attendees through the 12-page document.  Highlights included: 

The State of Michigan requires that Downtown Development Authorities hold two “informational meetings” per calendar year. 
Informational meetings are held for the purpose of informing the public of the goals and direction of the authority, including 
projects to be undertaken in the coming year.   Our DDA by-laws mandate that our informational meetings will be held in July and 
December in an effort to be aligned with the State requirement.   

The current DDA TIF plan you can scan the QR code on the front page and it will take you right to that document on our website 
icdda.com.  Just in case anyone is not familiar with the acronym TIF, it stands for Tax Increment Financing.  Imlay City City 
Commission adopted our TIF plan in 1985, it was updated and re-adopted in 2014 for a 30-year term.  It is this plan that 
determined the base taxable value rate when the plan was created that now allows for the DDA to capture 2.5 mills off the growth 
in property value of the initial values.  That is how the DDA is funded. 

 If you turn to page 2 you will see a map of the DDA TIF District boundaries highlighted in red, that area is where the DDA captures 
its funding from. 
A comprehensive breakdown of our approved 2024-2025 budget is on page 3.  It shows a balanced budget with revenues and 
expenses totaling $355,400.  According to the monthly financials provided at our regular meetings – actual revenues through 
November 30th are at 27.40% (with tax bills just being issued so we should see an increase in revenue in Jan and Feb) and actual 
expenditures are at 43.17% so we are trending right in alignment with the budget. 

The three largest areas of expense in the budget are revenue sharing with the city and city service expenses that we fund at 
roughly 32%, DDA employee's wages and benefits at 29%, and streetscape/beautification at just under 16%.  On the revenue side 
the majority of funding is coming through the TIF tax capture for Imlay City coming in at 73%. 

This past April the Board acted regarding Lapeer County Special Voted Mileages.  On the bottom of page 3 you see noted that we 
have confirmed opt-out status, not capturing the Lapeer EMS millage until 2026.  We will however begin to capture the Lapeer 

4



Public Safety, Senior Services and Veterans special voted millages with the condition of entering into revenue-sharing agreements 
with similar entities operating in and around Imlay City, to gift back to them 100% of the actual capture.  All three of those millages 
total around $40,000. 
 
On page 4 you will find our mission statement and vision statement, which is taken right from the 2014 City approved TIF plan.  Our 
plan is a 30-year plan so we 20 years or so to continue working on it.   
 
I’d like to highlight and read for you an excerpt about the DDA from the TIF plan.  It reads:  “The authority was established in 1976, 
the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority is under the supervision and control of a board consisting of a chief executive 
officer of the municipality and no less than eight, nor more than twelve members as determined by the governing body of the 
municipality. 
The function of the authority is to propose, finance and implement public improvements in the downtown development district. The 
Imlay City Downtown Development Authority is ultimately responsible for the revitalization of the downtown district as it is defined 
by Imlay City ordinance.” 
 
Continuing on page 4 there is a quick recap of stats for 2024, showing that the DDA held 11 regular monthly meetings, and 1 special 
meeting.   We sponsored 8 summer concerts in the park, held 14 Farmers Market Thursdays, and worked with the Chamber of 
Commerce to bring two events to downtown – Merchant Trick or Treat Party and WinterFest 2024. 
 
The DDA district welcomed five new businesses: Grooming By Miranda, El Ranchito, JG’s Used Book Store, Heavenly Sweets, J&J 
Liquidations.  We are eagerly anticipating the re-opening of Third & Main and Vanguard Sports Memorabilia later this month, and 
Meesch’s Ice Cream in the spring. 
 
Not mentioned in the packet is the DDA-owned building at 150 Bancroft Street.  While currently unoccupied and listed for sale, the 
DDA hosted rent-free Collection Connection through March 2024. 
 
Grants are the focus on page 5.  The DDA has submitted 6 grant funding applications in 2024 totaling over $13.2 million.  4 of our 
submissions have been awarded, totaling $79,000.  Unfortunately, Senator Gary Peters's office was unable to move our grant 
further at the Federal level, and we are awaiting the outcome of the newest Four County Community Foundations application for 
$12 million from the EPA Community Resilience grant.  If funded this would bring much-needed financial assistance to those 
economically challenged, it would also enlarge and enhance the Hispanic Services Center space and service abilities and it would 
build our new Community Resilience Pavilion in the Farmers Market area. 
The DDA administers a Façade Grant program of its own.  Since January 1, 2024, the DDA has approved 8 façade grant applications 
totaling $14,854 for exterior building improvements and signage.  With a new application for a $5,000 request on your agenda at 
our Dec Meeting. 
 
Page 6 provides a list of Goals and Direction taken from our TIF plan and shows the areas we focused on in 2024.  As you see, 20 
out of 26 goals we prioritized last year have been completed, 6 are still active and listed as “work in progress”.   Our list of projects 
include: 

• Renewed Lease and advertised on billboard located on M-53 (Cedar Street). 
• Maintain and upgrade the DDA website as needed. 
• Assist the city in becoming a Redevelopment Ready Community (ongoing but we did complete roughly 12 tasks) 
• Promoted and managed the Imlay City Facade Grant Program. 
• Leased and Advertised Retail Incubation Program @ 150 POP 
• Created a new downtown marketing plan and print materials. 
• Collaborated with other local organizations including the Chamber of Commerce, Lapeer Development Corporation, 

Rotary Club, Lapeer County Ed-Tech, & Imlay City Community Schools, Lapeer County DDA’s 
• Hosted special events that draw people into the community including Farmers Market; Concert in the Park Series, and 

WinterFest. 
• Replace deteriorated directional signage on MDOT roads. 
• Replaced the electronic message board sign on Cedar Street. 
• Developed the I AM Imlay City Community Storytelling project 
• Replaced brick paver areas along Third & Almont Ave..  with additional grinding of raised areas as needed. 
• Purchased additional trash receptacles, pet waste disposal systems for parks and downtown areas 
• Designed custom bike racks and way-finding kiosk (the creations are still in manufacturing, but I’m told they should be 

completed soon). 
• Re-striped, signed and performed maintenance on municipal parking lot behind King & King. 
• Worked with the MEDC to engage assistance programs they offer to expand business recruitment.  
• Held round-table meetings with area developers to discuss mutual goals for the city. 
• Worked with Wade-Trim Community Planer Kaitlyn Habben to engage community stakeholders and determine needs in 

the downtown area. 
• Created a “Downtown Day” promo video in partnership with the Almont and Lapeer DDA’s. 

5



• Continued discussions with CN Railroad for improvements to the viaduct including additional lighting, painting & 
beautification of the embankments. (This is on-going as we wait for labor costs to come from CN employees to perform 
the work) 

• Researched available Facade Improvement grants (this is on-going as we work to get shovel ready projects approved in 
advance of our 3.0 grant submission in January.  

• Listed property for sale to generate additional revenue for use on blighted building remediation. 
• Worked with EGLE for Third Street city-owned properties. We are still in negotiations with city leadership on purchase to 

help remediate the blighted properties. 
• Applied for 2 community placemaking grants for funding of a pavilion structure. 
• Worked to re-activate 1 re-development liquor license, and transfer of 1 escrowed resort license. 
• Issued RFP too solicit proposals on city owned Third Street properties. 
• Hired summer intern to increase social media presence and cross-market the DDA events in Spanish 

 
On page 7 you see excerpts from our TIF Plan and the projects that have been prioritized for 2025.  They include: 

• Working to assist Planning and Zoning to achieve Redevelopment Ready Community Status 
• Engage in MainStreet USA Program 
• ReDesign of website page for property listings 
• Market Available Facade Grants 
• Utilize newly created data sheet 
• Apply for RAP 3.0 Funding for Imlay Facade Corp Building Redevelopment Program 
• Expanded Constant Contact communications 
• Facilitate quarterly stakeholder meetings 
• Send out RFP for professional services for marketing services. 
• Continue negotiations with CN Rail personnel 
• Utilize MEDC RAP 3.0 Real Estate Development Grants 
• Work to identify blighted properties that qualify for grant funding under IC Holdings Corp 
• Work with City to create a new municipal parking lot on Third Street where the old sign shop is located 
• Convert all downtown and municipal lots to LED lamps to maximum utility savings 

 
Pages 8-10 provide you a snapshot of our online presence.  Our website (icdda.com) shows we have a reach of 7.3k people with 
13.4K views to our site since January 1, 2024. Google gives us the biggest hit in a browser search with 5.1k hits and 4.4k direct 
visits.   
 
Stats for our DDA Facebook and Instagram pages (Downtown Imlay City, Imlay City Farmers Market) show a combined reach of 
over 100,000 viewers.  This growth I believe was in part by hiring a dedicated marketing intern this past summer as you can see by 
the data spikes over those months.   
 
Page 11 shows events that are currently being planned for the 2025.  Note that some of the dates are still subject to change. But 
we are working on the Summer Concert Line-up, a 22-week (extended) farmers market season, along with the I AM IMLAY City 
project reveal, Downtown Day Celebration, Merchant Trick or Treating and WinterFest 2025. 
 
Wrapping up the report is the new Imlay City data marketing sheet that I created.  It contains some major demographic facts, 
highlights our location in proximity to major urban cities, and some fun facts about what makes Imlay City a great place to live, 
work, and do business. 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
None heard 
 

8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS - none 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Davis, support by Docherty to adjourn the meeting at 5:20 pm 
All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
DDA APPROVED:   
 
CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

6



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
December 9, 2024 Regular Meeting 

MINUTES 
 

A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, December 9, 2024, at 
Imlay City Municipal Offices, 150 N. Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:21 pm 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL  – Director Malzahn called the roll. 
 Present: Justin Shattuck, Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Steve Robbins, Joi Kempf, John Genord, Mayor 

Barbara Yockey, Chairman Walter Bargen 
 Absent: Neil Docherty, Jessica Montoya   
 Also Present: Chris Bishop 
          Quorum Present 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the consent agenda items as presented.  
 Consent agenda items include: 

• Meeting Agenda; Meeting Minutes: Nov 4th Special Meeting; Nov 4th Closed Session 
• Financial Reports – Ending November 30, 2024 
• DDA Expenditure Report = $ 25,917.87; Check Register Report = $ 15,216.42;  
• Credit Statement – Oct & Nov; Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 221,638.01;  
• FY24-25 City administrative transfers; November Totals $5,690.99 

 All in Favor 8 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
5. CORRESPONDENCE – none 
 
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Item will be discussed during IC Holdings Meeting 
 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION –  

• Rob Mette presented on behalf of the IC Chamber of Commerce, claiming 100% 
ownership of 4 fire pits purchased in 2023 via check to Tractor Supply. The pits were 
used during WinterFest 2024 and were removed by Chamber members from municipal 
property after the event to be stored at their location.  They will no longer need storage of 
their items (firepits, Santa chair, backdrop etc.). 

• Michon Thompson spoke on behalf of Kaylee Kaeding, St. Paul Lutheran Church Youth 
Director thanked the DDA for the assistance at WinterFest during setup, she requested 
clearer communication going forward on dates/times, but that all went well during this 
year's event and they were pleased to participate. 
 

 

7



9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 None 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 202 E. Third Street Façade Grant Application 
John Lengemann submitted a Façade Grant Application (only one estimate was included) to 
the DDA.  He is seeking funding for building exterior improvements in the amount of 
$5,000.00.  The Board reviewed the application. 

MOTION by Genord, supported by Jorgensen to approve the Façade Grant request in the amount of 
$5,000 as submitted.  
Roll Call:  AYES – Genord, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Kempf, Davis, Robbins, Yockey, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 
 

B. Revenue Sharing MOU – Public Safety  
The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  
The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue 
generated by the 1.45 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Public Safety millage within the 
DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a 
gift to the ICPD. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to public safety improvements and 
services within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District.  Director Malzahn recommended 
that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt 
Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Police Dept as 
presented. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Shattuck, Genord, Jorgensen, Kempf, Robbins, Yockey, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 
 

C. Revenue Sharing MOU – Senior Services 
 The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  

The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue 
generated by the .3916 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Services millage within the 
DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a 
gift to the Imlay City Senior Center. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the 
local Imlay City seniors and their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  
Director Malzahn recommended that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt 
Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Senior Center as 
presented. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Shattuck, Genord, Kempf, Robbins, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 
 

D. Revenue Sharing MOU – Veterans 
 The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  

The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue 

8



generated by the 1.850 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Veterans millage within the DDA’s 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to 
the Imlay City VFW Post 2492. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the local 
Imlay City veterans and their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  
Director Malzahn recommends that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt 
Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with Imlay City VFW Post 2492 as 
presented. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Genord, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 
 

E. Irrigation Services Proposals  
 The DDA reviewed proposals submitted to the RFP issued for Irrigation Services to assist with 

the sprinkler system infrastructure in the DDA District.  Two submissions were received 
 Aqua Turf (current provider) ($600 start-up and winterization, $80 hr for repairs as needed) 

and Techseven Company from Shelby Twp. ($2280 start-up and winterization). 
MOTION by Davis, supported by Genord to retain the services of Aqua Turg for the purpose of 
 providing irrigation system services in the amount of $600 annually and enter into a contract 

for a 3-year term ending December 31, 2027. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Genord, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 
 

F. Landscape / Annual Flowers Proposals  
 The DDA reviewed proposals submitted to the RFP issued for Landscape Services to assist 

with the annual flower plantings and maintenance in the DDA District.  Two submissions 
received - GreenScape Solutions (current provider) ($35,000 annual plantings, no submission 
for bid item #2 maintenance) and Fineline Landscape ($36,785 annual plantings, $11,500 
maintenance = $48,285).  Director Malzahn recommended awarding the contract to Fineline 
for a 1-year contract to ensure that the flowers planted are warranted and maintained 
throughout the year. 

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to retain the services of Fineline Landscape for the 
purpose of providing landscape services and annual flower planting in the amount of $48,285 
and enter into a one-year contract ending December 2025. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Genord, Robbins, Kempf, Bargen 

  NAYS – Davis, Shattuck 
MOTION CARRIED 6/2 

 

G. Rotary Park Improvement Project  
Director Malzahn presented an improvement concept plan for Rotary Park that she has worked to 
create with Dana Walker.  The plan had been previously reviewed by the IC Rotary Club and the IC 
Parks & Rec, both organizations are in support of the project.  The Imlay City Parks Master Plan does 
not have any long term plans to fund capital improvements to that park area in the DDA district. 

 
 The Board expressed interest and would be supportive but was concerned over committing to a 

specific dollar amount since the proposal did not contain final costs.  Malzahn discussed the grant 
application processes stating that in order to apply, proof of matching funds is usually required. 

9



 
MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Genord to proceed with the Rotary Park improvement project, 

pending Parks Commission approvals, with a funding commitment of 10% of project costs. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Genord, Davis, Robbins, Shattuck, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 8/0 

 
Vice Chair Docherty arrived at meeting at 6:02 pm 

H. Municipal Parking Lease Renewals 
Director Malzahn asked for a discussion regarding DDA-facilitated lease agreements with 
several property owners for the use of their property as municipal parking that is set to expire 
in 2025.  These leases allowed private parking areas, mainly behind the businesses on 
Almont Ave to be used for public parking.  In exchange, the owners received maintenance and 
repairs to these areas.  Joi Kempf talked about her properties on Depot Drive that were under 
a similar lease agreement but have since expired and the areas reverted to the property 
owners. 
The Board requested better documentation of the areas in question to ensure that the cost 
borne by the city is beneficial to the public not just the property owners. 

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Genord to table the lease renewals, pending review of detailed 
area maps and current building ownership. 

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 
11.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT 

Director Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for November 2024.   
 

12.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – 
   Rob Mette spoke on behalf of the IC Chamber of Commerce, regarding the fire pits again. 

 

13.   BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
Mayor Barb Yockey commented on how great WinterFest was and the need for clear written 
agreements. 

 
14.  ADJOURNMENT 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Genord to adjourn the meeting at 6:19 pm 
 All in Favor 9 Ayes/Nays 0  
 MOTION CARRIED 9/0 
 
 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, January 13, 2025, at 5:35 PM 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
 
DDA APPROVED: 
 
CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



City Adm
inistrative Applied Charges

2023-2024 Budget
$30,000.00

$35,000.00
324,500.00

M
onth

Electricity               Street 
Lam

ps
Copier                    G

L 
M

isc.  #956.000

O
ffice Supplies      

N
on-DDA 

Purchased
Phones          

G
L# 853.000    

City G
rounds 

M
aintenance    
G

L M
isc.  

#956.000
O

ther
Adm

inistrative 
Transfer

 Legal Services 
G

L# 826.000 

Com
puter 

Services     G
L# 

818.000

O
ld Fire H

all 
Consum

ers 
Energy

W
ater Usage for 
dow

ntow
n 

irrigation

 M
M

L Liability 
Insurance G

L# 
830.000 

M
onthly Totals

7/1/2023
$2,665.23

$50.56
$48.55

$840.00
$35,000.00

$38,604.34
8/1/2023

$2,650.84
$50.24

$119.02
$63.46

$840.00
$3,723.56

9/1/2023
$2,703.44

$26.95
$81.10

$840.00
$6.93

$3,658.42
10/1/2023

$2,801.50
$63.38

$7.36
$840.00

$1,073.34
$4,785.58

11/1/2023
$2,818.39

$207.29
$44.64

$162.47
$3,232.79

12/1/2023
$3,395.95

$70.88
$22.51

$68.34
$70.40

$3,628.08
1/1/2024

$4,022.87
$55.94

$31.32
$113.05

$4,223.18
2/1/2024

$2,927.46
$65.76

$71.27
$114.60

$3,179.09
3/1/2024

$2,810.06
$97.35

$16.39
$55.79

$2,979.59
4/1/2024

$4,441.57
$26.95

$57.04
$55.33

$806.40
$189.56

$5,576.85
5/1/2024

$4,145.07
$80.91

$46.54
$18.86

$806.40
$375.00

$5,472.78
6/1/2024

$4,013.79
$48.77

$11.90
$50.00

$806.40
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$5,614.36

$43,396.10
$909.64

$469.18
$799.79

$6,585.60
$1,715.23

$35,000.00
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$89,355.54

2024-2025 Budget
$30,000.00

$4,000.00
$1,200.00

$4,000.00
$35,000.00

200.00
$              

6/12/2024
7/1/2024

$3,999.93
$64.66

$9.43
$806.40

$13.30
$4,192.41

$9,086.13
8/1/2024

$4,243.14
$70.00

$177.87
$806.40

30.00
$                    

200.95
974.90

$              
$6,503.26

9/24/2024
$4,093.51

$37.97
$121.03

$806.40
200.95

$5,259.86
10/31/2024

$4,632.38
$33.87

$16.50
$64.67

13.45
$4,760.87

11/30/2024
$4,454.62

$80.27
$162.20

$806.40
187.5

$5,690.99
12/31/2024

$4,707.43
$83.05

$115.22
200.95

$5,106.65
$26,131.01

$369.82
$16.50

$650.42
$3,225.60

30.00
$                    

$817.10
$4,192.41

974.90
$              

$36, 407.76

17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

18



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM UB 9A: Municipal Parking Lease Renewals  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: According to records City management entered into DDA-facilitated lease 
agreements with several property owners for use of their property as municipal 
parking.  In exchange for public use, the owners received maintenance and 
repairs to these areas.  The leases were for a term of 15 years and are set to 
expire in 2025. 

Items Attached: Almont Avenue Alley: 
147 N. Almont Ave - Bee Gee’s Family Shoes (Current Tenant – Health Quest)     
       (parcel #I19-91-100-000-00) –  expires August 23  

 
 121 N. Almont Ave. - Armando Conzales –  (Current Tenant – Armando’s) 
      (parcel # I19-90-500-000-00) – expires March 12 
 
 131 N. Almont - Antonelli Property Mgt. (Current Tenant Counseling Center) 
      (parcel #I19-90-800-000-00) – expires February 16 
 
 137 N. Almont – Lynn Craig ( Current Tenant Crandall Accounting)  
      (parcel #I19-90-900-000-00) – expires August 26 
 
 143 N. Almont - Mr. & Mrs. Guerrero (Current Tenant Heavenly Sweets) 
       (parcel #I19-91-000-000-00 – expires March 22 
 
 113 N. Almont - CSB Bank (Current Tenant Hispanic Services Center)  
        (parcel #I19-90-300-000-00) – expires August 10  
 
 109 N. Almont - Janet O’Donnell (Current Tenant - Joy’s Nails) 
        (parcel # I19-90-200-000-00) – expires March 3 
 
 Bancroft Municipal Parking Lot 
 201 E. Third Street - Jeff Johnson (Gem & Diamond) 
      (parcel #I19-64-300-000-00) – expires September 1 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to pursue lease renewals with the property owner for an additional 15 
years. 

19



20



21



22



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM UB 9b. City/DDA Revenue Sharing  
Memorandum of Understanding 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background:  The negotiating committee has met serval times with city management and 
is recommending that Board agree to an administrative transfer of 15% of 
the total DDA annual city tax capture to help offset city borne costs 
associated with the downtown area.  The revenue sharing will include 
services utilized by the DDA for city staff (bookkeeper, clerk/treasurer etc) 
plus office space.  Furthermore the DDA agrees to continue to pay the 
monthly utility charges to operate the street lighting in the downtown area 
(but not those on municipal owned properties), monthly usage fees for office 
equipment, insurance coverage on all DDA assets, and for lawncare 
maintenance of the grass in the downtown area parks/depot drive.  

 Under this new MOU the DDA will now capture monthly interest income on 
its fund balance and will look to reduce utility costs by converting the 
downtown lights to LED. 

 

Items Attached:  Revised Memo of Understanding Agreement  

 

Action Needed:  Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion.  

 

Recommendation:  Motion to reject the Revenue Sharing Agreement as presented. 

23



Imlay City & Imlay DDA 

Memo of Understanding Discussion Le�er 

Per the Audit records of the City of Imlay City, the Downtown Development Authority started some!me 

in 1985.  The primary reoccurring revenue for the DDA is the captured taxes from the City of Imlay City.  

The total revenues for the DDA in 1986 was $25,832, in 1987 it was $51,661 and it has been growing 

ever since. 

For the year ending June 30, 2014, the Imlay City Commission and the DDA agreed to a reimbursement 

of the taxes captured from the city by the DDA back to the city of $35,000.  This $35,000 represented 

15.21% of the $230,056.89 captured from the City Taxes revenues by the DDA, and was meant to help 

cover the ever-increasing internal costs of opera!ng a city. 

Since that !me cost have con!nued to increase, along with the amount of funding captured from the 

city by the DDA.  The amount of City tax revenues captured from the city by the DDA for year ending 

June 30, 2024 was $281,744.81.  Using the same percentage rate as used in 2014, the amount 

reimbursed to the city should be $42,853.38.  The city and the DDA have agreed to an annual rate of 

15% of captured amounts effec!ve July 1, 2024 which will equal $42,261.72 for fiscal year 2024/2025. 

The city agrees that with the contribu!on from the DDA of captured taxes back to the city, that some 

cost incurred by the city within the DDA should not be charged to the DDA.  Internal costs such as Police 

protec!on ($300,000+), Fire protec!on ($42,000+), Waste Water Treatment Plant u!liza!on (40% of 

budget) and most Department of Public Works (direct extra $30,000) and City Hall Services should be 

included, but there must be limits. 

We feel that the annual infla�on adjusted amount should only include internal cost.  Meaning any 

outside direct vendors: DDA billboard, DDA landscaping, DDA lawnmowing, DDA Irriga!on, DDA area 

Railroad contracts, and DDA U!li!es, should be in addi!on to the annual amount.  

A por!on of shared costs should also be charged to the DDA.  Shared costs are charges from outside 

vendors to the city that are then spread back to each department based on an appropriate criterion.    

Some examples of shared costs are:  Property and Liability Insurance and Workers Comp. Insurance 

(currently the city pays MML for property and liability insurance, this includes building/property the city 

(or DDA) owns, it also includes General Liability and workers comp. which are charged back based on 

percentage of payroll and Public Errors & Omissions which is charged back based on number of 

employees. The more proper!es the DDA purchases or the more employees they hire, the more their 

share of these will go up.  City Hall Shared Services would include (but not be limited to): share of 

Annual Audi�ng Cost, Cost for both Telephone equipment and monthly base and usage charges, 

Computers, including Desk top, Laptop, and individual prin!ng devices, plus the cost of Internet Services 

and Maintenance Contracts, Copy Machine usage including Number of black and white, number of color 

and amount of paper used plus the Lease and Maintenance charges. Paper, pens, envelopes, and 

postage can be purchased separately by the DDA.    

24



Some of the City Hall costs the DDA is NOT charged for include: Payroll, Accounts Payable, Accounts 

Receivable, Banking, Tax capture repor!ng, No rental or U!li!es for City Hall, Cleaning Charges, Storage 

space u!liza!on, mee!ng space. 

The city agrees to credit the DDA fund for interest on the ending monthly fund balance in the DDA fund 

at the end of each month.  The calcula!on for the for the earned interest amount will be: 

DDA month end fund balance X General Fund Main Checking Account interest rate for each 

month / 12 months 

 (Example:   $100,000                X                         3.31%                                       / 12     =    $275.83) 

 

The City Manager, DDA Director and City Bookkeeper will meet to determine what street lights are 

included in the DDA Capturing district.  Those lights that are determined to be in the tax capturing 

district will be paid for by the DDA tax captured dollars.  

 

 

 

 

__________________________      _________________________ 

DDA Chairperson       City Manager 

 

 

__________________________      _________________________ 

DDA Director                      City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

26



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10a: @150 Pop Application 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: A completed application from a prospective tenant was received on 
December 28, 2024 from Gabrielle Wise with LikeWise Photo & Designs.  She 
is seeking use of the incubator space on Bancroft Street as a temporary home 
for her recently created business. 

 

Items Attached: Completed application 
 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommended  Motion to create and execute a 6-month lease agreement with LikeWise  
 Photo & Designs 
 

 

 

   
 

   
 

 

 

27



LikeWise Photo & Designs 

5018 Imlay City Rd Apt 2 

Attica, MI 48412 

 

December 21st, 2024 

 

Please see attached application to be considered for the 150 Bancroft incubator space. 

 

• Description/ Business Plan 
o I currently run my photography studio out of the garage at the apartment 

complex where I live. I photograph all types of portrait sessions, but my 
favorites are maternity, newborn and family. I have over a year experience in 
the industry after working under another photographer (who resides out of 
state) to get my own business up and running. The building I am currently 
using is hard to heat (or cool in summer months) and doesn’t have a 
restroom for my clients. My goal as a business owner, is to provide an 
experience to my portrait photography clients but also allow walk-in 
opportunities during the holidays as well. 

o For portrait photography, I specialize in capturing newborn, maternity, and 
family moments. My aim is to offer a personalized experience that includes a 
sit-down meeting after the session to review print packages and wall art 
options. This is best achieved in a comfortable setting where we can discuss 
and select the perfect pieces to cherish their memories. 

o My plan is to do photo editing on location. The first reason is to create a clear 
distinction between my at-home and at-work life. Additionally, by editing at 
my business location, I can set up holiday sessions that remain available. 
This means if anyone wants to do walk-in mini sessions for the holidays, I'm 
readily available! The walk-in services would also be available for headshots, 
milestone celebrations, and other quick setups. 

o I plan to display my newborn props on shelves or such. Having a dedicated 
space, I could install a mirror and racks to hang my client closet and 
maternity gowns. I also have a backdrop rack that would need to be installed 
in the walls.  

28



o In addition to photography, I make some of my own keepsakes for clients. 
These include metal posters, mugs, keychains etc. I also handmake 
headbands and crochet stuffies (for newborns) that I would like to display as 
well. 

o On the exterior of the building, I would like to discuss improving the curb 
appeal. I attended Lapeer Ed-tech for Horticulture and received several 
awards in landscaping. I would love to re-do the outside if I could be provided 
with the necessary materials. I have a few ideas that are low-maintenance 
and will last for years, if you're willing to consider them. 

o I would like to utilize the incubator space for the full 6 months offered. I think 
that will give me a good idea through a few holidays and seasons and what to 
expect with an actual store front. 
 

• Business Hours: 
o I would like my business hours for walk-ins to be: 

• Tues 12pm-6pm 
• Wed 12pm-6pm 
• Thu- 12p-6pm 
• Friday- 5pm-9pm 
• Sat- 5-9pm 

o I would also be available for appointments during the other hours during the 
week as well. This just gives a good setup for walk-ins from patterns I’ve 
noticed from previous bookings. 
 

• Marketing Plan: 
o I am very skilled in social media and how to run advertisements on all 

platforms. My business is growing, so I don’t have a large following yet, but I 
have great reviews and repeat customers which are leading to an increased 
followers daily. I utilize all the mainstream socials, such as Facebook, 
Instagram, Pinterest and Tik-Tok.  

o I am also hoping that I can partner with other local businesses (such as the 
dog groomer) to collaborate and get more traffic downtown! Word-of-mouth 
is the cornerstone for a small business and I plan to do my part in helping 
with that! 

• Future Plans: 
o I hope to either continue leasing the current space and paying the rent or find 

a new location downtown to keep offering a walk-in photography studio. If I 

29



were to relocate, I would consider renting out the space to other 
photographers, allowing them to collaborate on bringing their visions to life.  
 

• Finances: 
o My photography business is self-sustaining. My equipment, props and such 

are all paid in full, and I don’t see myself needing any new equipment in the 
foreseeable future.  

o My slow months are usually January and early February. I combat this by 
offering discounted sessions, free prints with orders or running more ads. I 
offer boudoir sessions, Valentine’s minis and closer to March I offer St Patty’s 
Minis. In between these, I offer family sessions, engagement sessions and 
more. 

o After my slow months, I anticipate a resurgence in business. This is when 
spring mini sessions and birthday shoots become more popular. As we 
transition into the spring and summer months, wedding bookings start to 
increase. Although I don't typically advertise for weddings, I plan to start 
promoting them during the winter months!  

 

• Website: https://likewisephotoanddesigns.mypixieset.com/ 
• Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/LikeWiseDesigns8 

 

 

Thank you for this opportunity and your consideration! I can be reached via email 
(gabby.wise57@gmail.com) or by phone (810-835-6832) 

 

Gabrielle Wise 

LikeWise Photo & Designs 

 

30

https://likewisephotoanddesigns.mypixieset.com/
https://www.facebook.com/LikeWiseDesigns8
mailto:gabby.wise57@gmail.com


31



32



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10b: Community Spotlight Podcasts 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: As part of our TIF District Marketing Plan, director Malzahn is seeking to 
develop an Imlay City Community Spotlight Podcast.  The plan would include 
the creation of 12+ unique podcasts that would be focused on business 
spotlights but also touch on community events – like the Farmers Market and 
other community events. Other podcast topics could include MEDC 
assistance options, Michigan SBDC resources, vacant property spotlights. 

 The MittTV studio and staff will be used to create the episodes at a cost of 
$180 per hour.  

 

Items Attached: TIF plan pages 22-23 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommended  Motion to create 12 Imlay City DDA Podcasts with audio and video at the 
MittTV Studio in an amount not to exceed $2160. 

 

33



PROJECT 
fifillvettj1ltg'.1i11)£ •• 

Develop a Retention/Recruitment Plan 
Market study 
Website improvements 
Marketing materials 
Billboard rentals 
Image and Donut ads 
Trail-to-Downtown Map 
Social M~dia consultant 

: Capital Projecis / iniiastructure 
Upgrade utilities on 2nd street 
Build pavilion for farmers market 
M-21 and M-53 Road Improvements 
Downtown wHi installation 
Industrial Park fiber-optic installation 
Viaduct improvements (landscaping, sidewalks) 
Pathway Connections to Downtown 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure on 4th Street 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure on NE Corner of M-
53/M-21 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure on 3rd Street 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure on Main Street 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure on Almont Avenue 
Upgrade sewer line between 1st and 2nd Streets, between 
Almont Avenue and M-53 
Upgrade utilities and infrastructure as needed 

througho_ut d_istrict 
'. Maintenance 

Lighting 
Parking 
Road resu1facing 
Sidewalk 

l'iitograms 
Land Acquisition Plan 
Downtown Housing Program 
Rental Incubator Program 
Updated design guidelines 

n/1'.<iii'eWfA~quisitlon • 
Parks 
Vacant or Underutilized 

Imlay City DDA and TIF Plan 
Adopted: June 17, 2014 

COST 

TBD 
$5,000 

$100 to $500 / hour 
$25,000 

$2,500 / month 
TBD 

$1,500 
$100 to $500 / hour 

$695,000 
$40,000 

Prices vary widely 
$4,000 to $6,000 / business 

$50,000 / mile 
TBD 

Prices vary widely 
$748,656 

$150,000 
$331,648 
$151,158 
$238,000 

TBD 

TBD 

$4000 I pole 
$2.25/sq.ft. 

$5 / square yard 
$10.00/ ft. 

TBD 
TBD 
TBD 
TBD 

$50,000 to $100,000 
$50,000 to $100,000 

••• - - -- ] 
PRIORITY/ 

T!MEFRAME 
7 

2014/2015 
2014/2015 
As needed 
As needed 
2015/2016 

2014/2015 
As needed 

2015/2016 
2015/2016 
2015/2016 

2014/2015 

2014/2015 
2014/2015 
2014/2015 
2014/2015 

2014/2015 

2014/2015 

As needed 
As needed 
As needed 
As needed 

As needed 
2018/2020 
2015/2024 
2018/2020 

As needed 

16 

34



PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 
The specific projects and their approximate timeframe for completion is shown in Table 1. The 
estim.ated timing of implementation is as shown in the Table, but may be adjusted as resources 

allow. In reality, certain projects may be undertaken before the timeframe specified if 
opportunities present themselves, or after the timeframe if adequate resources or other elements 
of the project are not yet available. The projects in this plan are described in more detail below: 

§ Advertising Projects. Advertising projects listed in Table 1 include a variety of "soft" (i.e. 
not "capital") projects aimed at generating interest and re-investment within the district. 
The Downtown Development Authority will commission marketing studies and develop 
marketing and sales materials for the development district in order to promote 
development and redevelopment by the private sector. The project is estimated to cost 
$5,000 with utilizing a marketing class at a local university. The DOA conducts regular 
marketing campaigns that are continually adjusted to match current trends, interests and 
events related to the downtown. As such, regular adjustments to print materials, social 
media and websites must be maintained. The projects listed include those necessary to 
keep the DOA relevant to potential businesses and patrons. Because the scope of these 
projects may be adjusted, Table 1 presents general estimates for the DDA's reference when 

they are ready to initiate a project. 

§ Capital Improvement Projects. To maintain a safe and welcoming downtown, the DOA 
will invest in a variety of capital projects. Most of the projects listed in Table 1 include 
replacement or repair or aging roads and infrastructure. Cost estimates have been 
prepared for some of the higher priority projects. The cost for later improvements or 
those that may involve collaboration with the City of Imlay City, such as pathway 
installation or improvements to roads that extend beyond the DDA boundary, will be 
determined when they are higher in priority or when cost-sharing or other opportunities 
arise. Other capital improvements are aimed at improving the downtown for visitors, 
including a pavilion at the farmer's market and wi-fi installation. Similarly, fiber-optic 
technology will be installed within the Industrial Park to further marketing efforts for those 

sites. 

§ Maintenance Projects. The Downtown Development Authority will replace sidewalks; 
upgrade utilities as needed and pave streets as needed within the development area. 
Costs are estimated on a per-unit basis for these items, as replacement or maintenance 
needs cannot often be predicted. To facilitate maintenance and administer all projects in 
this plan, administration costs are estimated between $50,000 and $75,000 annually for the 

life of the DOA. 

§ Programming Projects. Part of the Downtown Development Authority's duties are to 
encourage business growth, prevent deterioration within the district, and guide 

Imlay City DDA and TIF Plan 
Adopted: June 17, 2014 

17 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

36



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c: Social District Proposal and Management Plan 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: For the past several months Chief Selby, City Manager Horton and DDA 
Director Malzahn have worked together to create a proposal for a downtown 
Imlay City Social District.  We recognized that social districts are a tool to 
improve opportunities, attract people and new businesses to our downtown.  

 During covid, legislation in Michigan changed to allow the consumption of 
alcoholic beverages in common areas or areas confined to having open 
alcohol outside in seating areas and in between businesses within the 
confines of a bordered, established “district”. Previously a Social District was 
not considered because there were no active liquor holders that could apply 
to Michigan Liquor Control.   

 Cities and towns are finding huge success in allowing regulated purchased 
alcohol and consumption within a specified district of a downtown area. 

The State legislation has outlined the following steps necessary to create a 
social district: 

The Municipality (City Commission / DDA) 
The municipality's governing body, such as a City Council, must designate the 
area which will be the Social District.  The Social District must include a 
“Commons Area” in which the patrons of qualified licensees may consume 
alcohol in the Commons Area.  The municipality must: 

• Define and clearly mark the Commons Area with signs. 

• Show that at least two (2) qualified licensees must have their licensed 
premises contiguous to a Commons Area for the area to qualify to be 
part of a Social District. 

• Establish a Management Plan, which includes the hours of operation, 
for the Social District. 

37



• Maintain the Social District in a manner that protects the health and 
safety of the community. 

 
The Michigan Liquor Control Commission 
The Management Plan (usually created by the DDA or Economic 
Development Agency) submitted by the municipality will be reviewed by the 
MLCC.  If the Management Plan meets the requirements of the law, the 
request for the Social District will be placed on an agenda at a regularly 
scheduled licensing meeting to be approved by the MLCC Commissioners.  

Social District Permits 
In order for a bar, restaurant or hotel (“Licensee”) to be able to sell alcohol to 
be consumed in the Social District, it must obtain a Social District Permit from 
the MLCC. 
The Social District Permit is obtained as follows: 

• The Licensee must first obtain a resolution of approval from the 
municipality in the form provided by the MLCC. 

• The Licensee then applies to the MLCC for the Social District 
Permit.  The application is short and straightforward. The Licensee is 
required to pay an inspection fee of $70 and a permit fee of $250. 

• Applications for Social District Permits are reviewed by the MLCC and 
approved at a regularly scheduled MLCC licensing meeting. 

• Like any other permit, the Licensee must qualify. The MLCC will 
consider violation history. 

 

Items Attached: Social District Proposal 
 Social District Management Plan 
 Social District Signage Pricing 
  
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommended  Motion to approve the Imlay City Social District Management Plan as part of 
the Social District Proposal and send to City Commission for a resolution of 
approval. 

 

38



Social District Signage Pricing 

 

2” Logo Stickers (1000 per license holder) 

3000 qty = $700 

 

12” x 18” reflective aluminum signage = $30 ea + post ? 

13 – Boundaries Entering = $390 

13  - Boundaries Exiting = $390 

8 – District Designation  = $390 

 

2’ x 2’ Boot Prints ground signs = $145 each 

 5 for key intersections = $725 

                (may be used in place of the district designation aluminum signs)  
 

2”x3” Rules of Conduct (J-Bond Material for building mount) = $75 each 

 5 – displayed in park areas = $375 

39



 
Imlay City Police Department 

395 East Third St. 
Imlay City, MI  48444 

(810) 724-2345 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Mr. Craig Horton, City Manager, Mayor Barbara Yockey 

Cc: Christine Malzahn, DDA Director, Chamber of Commerce Director, Sheryl Davis, City     

Commission. 

From: Chief of Police, Brett D. Selby 

Subject: Proposal of Downtown Imlay City Social District 

 

 
 

40



 
Proposal of Agenda Item: 
Downtown Social District 

 
It is my recommendation that The City of Imlay City pursue a Downtown Social District to provide 
new opportunities for outdoor consumption of alcohol under the restrictions of the State of 
Michigan Social District legislation. Establishing a social district in the downtown will also invite 
other establishments to choose Imlay City for future development. Social districts in Michigan 
can benefit businesses, communities, and the public in several ways, including:  
 

• Economic recovery: Social districts can help bars and restaurants recover from economic 
hardship.  

• Increased sales: Social districts can increase sales for nearby shops, such as retail stores 
and spur future eating and drinking establishments  

• Public health: Social districts can promote public health and social distancing.  
• Downtown revitalization: Social districts can help revitalize downtown areas.  
• Outdoor dining: Social districts allow people to gather outdoors safely and enjoy 

alcoholic beverages.  
• Flexibility: Social districts allow people to purchase drinks and food from different places 

and dine together in a common area. 
  

House Bill 5781 was signed into law on July 1, 2020, providing Michigan municipalities the authority 
to establish Social Districts where Social District Permits can be issued for the sale of to-go 
cocktails and outdoor alcohol consumption. 
WHAT IS A SOCIAL DISTRICT? 
A Social District is an area designated by the municipal government where consumers are able 
to drink beer, wine, or spirits in a designated commons area outside the walls of a licensed 
establishment. Social districts are overseen by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 

 

WHAT IS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN A SOCIAL DISTRICT AND A COMMON AREA? 

A Social District is the entire area designated by the Local Government, which includes the 
common areas within the Social District. Establishment of a Social District does not mean 
consumers may drink alcoholic beverages throughout the entire district. Consumption of those 
beverages is only permitted within the defined commons areas. The Michigan Liquor Control 
Commissions defines a commons area as area(s) within the established Social District that are 
clearly designated and marked by the Local Government and that are shared by and 
contiguous to the premises of at least two qualified licensees. Social Districts can include more 
than one common area. 

The Downtown area of Imlay City would initially propose two businesses be the first two active 
permitted social district businesses: 

1. Third/Main, Inc 244 E. Third Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
2. Botana’s Inc 234 E Third Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444 

This resolution will create the Social District Common Area in Downtown Imlay City. The Social 
District will extend from the western tip of the cul-de-sac on Third Street west to the west side of 
Almont from Second Street to Fifth Street on both sides. The area along Depot Drive from Almont 
Street to the old DPW barn and north behind the police department to the interior area of the 
Alvin Norlin Pool and west to the rear of City Hall and south back to third Street. West From Third 
Street south of Main Street to north on the alley behind 150 Popp parallel to  Bancroft then west 
to Bancroft and south back to Third Street. 
 

41



The proposed operating hours for the Social District will be: 
Sun-Thursday: 12pm-8pm 
Fri- Saturday: 12pm- 10pm 
 
The Imlay City Social District will be closed on the following US Holidays: 
 

- Labor Day 
- Fourth of July 

Fiscal or Resource Considerations:                                                          YES               NO  
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds?                   YES                     NO  
If YES, are funds budgeted?                                                                     YES               NO  
Are staff or other resources required?                                                     YES                     NO  

Advisory Board/Commission/Chief of Police/Recommendation: 

Staff Comments: 

City Manager Comments/Recommendation:  

City Manager Recommended Form of Motion: 
Motion to approve the attached resolution to reactivate a Social District in the City of 
Imlay City, consistent with the map and operating plan provided 

Names and addresses of those to be notified: 
 

1. Third/Main, Inc. 244 E. Third Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
2. Botana’s El Paiza, Inc. 234 E Third Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
3. Eagles of Imlay City, 170 S. Almont Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444 

 

Attachments: 
Imlay City Social District Draft Operating Plan, Imlay City Social District Proposed Map, 
Resolution for Social District in Imlay City. Required signage and explanation. 

 

42



CITY OF IMLAY CITY, MICHIGAN 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING A SOCIAL DISTRICT CONTAINING WITH COMMON AREAS FOR 
ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION AND THE ADOPTION OF AN OPERATING PLAN PURSUANT TO PUBLIC 

Ord. ______OF 2025 

 

Resolution of the Imlay City Commission 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Liquor Control Code was recently amended by 2020 Public Act 124 (the 
Act) to allow the governing body of a local governmental unit to designate social districts and 
commons areas which may be used by qualified licensees to obtain a social district permit from 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) to utilize expanded areas for the consumption 
of alcohol; and 

WHEREAS, if the governing body of a local governmental unit designates a social district that 
contains a commons area, the governing body must define and clearly mark the common 
areas with signs, establish local management and maintenance plans including, but not limited 
to, hours of operation for submittal to the MLCC, and maintain the common areas in a manner 
that protects the health and safety of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the city continues to recognize that the recent public health emergency caused by 
the COVID-19 global pandemic has caused the shutdown of certain businesses for varying 
amounts of time, and when open, other social distancing recommendations and requirements 
have resulted in reduced occupancies that have impacted City businesses and the people 
employed by them; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that designating social districts and common areas 
pursuant to the Act is in the best interests of the citizens of the City of Imlay City, especially in 
light of COVID19 restrictions on indoor gatherings and social distancing recommendations; and 

WHEREAS, Social District boundaries are indicated by the Imlay City Social District map and 
Common Area Boundaries are also provided on the map with the exception of the premises of 
the qualified licensees; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Commission directs the Planning and Zoning Department and Imlay City DDA, 
in conjunction with the participating licensees, to create a logo which bears the name of the 
Imlay City Social District common area, and that logo shall be printed on signs that clearly mark 
and define the Imlay City Social District commons area and on stickers to label containers; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council designates the social districts and 
commons area as provided on the Imlay City Social District Map, establishes the attached 
operating plan, and authorizes the City Manager to take all such other actions necessary in order 
to implement this Resolution and comply with the Act. 

Resolution Approved and Adopted on______________________ By a Majority vote of the 

Commission _________________________________ 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

43



 

CERTIFICATE OF MAYOR AND CITY CLERK 

 
 We hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an 
Ordinance duly adopted by the City Commission of the City of Imlay City, Lapeer County, 
Michigan, at a meeting held on the ____ day of __________, 2024. 
 
 We hereby further certify that the following City Commission Members were present at the 
meeting:  ____________________________________________________________________________  
and the following City Commission Members were absent:  _____________________ 
 
 We further certify that Member ________________ moved for the adoption of the 
Ordinance, and that motion was supported by Member ________________.                     
 
 We further certify that the following City Commission Members voted for the adoption of 
the Ordinance:  _______________________________________________ 
and that the following City Commission Members voted against adoption of the Ordinance:  
_________________________________________________________________.  
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Barbara L. Yockey, Mayor 
       City of Imlay City 
 
       ________________________________  
       Dawn Sawicki-Franz, Clerk 
       City of Imlay City 
First Reading _________________  
Second Reading _________________ 
Date of Publication  _______________ 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION 
 
 
 I, Dawn Sawicki-Franz, the Clerk of the City of Imlay City do hereby certify that this 
Ordinance or a summary thereof was published in the Tri-City Times on _________________.   
 

       ________________________________  
       Dawn Sawicki-Franz, Clerk 
       City of Imlay City 

  

44



  

 
          

            
                                                                                                                                              

Designated Consumption area is outlined in 
yellow and Orange.  
 

  Participants- Social District (1/2025) 

 

 

Sunday- Thursday 12pm-9pm 
Friday-Saturday 12pm-11pm 

Available Available Available 

45





Example sinage posted by DDA in the Social District Common 
areas of Downtown Imlay City. These will be posted on the 
sidewalks clearly marking the Imlay City Downtown Social 
District Zones on the ground. 

                  

Special large cement stickers with the Imlay City/DDA Social 
District logo will have to be attached to each approved 
container cup. 
 
Additional garbage cans from the city will be placed in these 
areas accordingly. 

Sidewalk 

47



         
Social District will have an official cup/sticker. No other cups or containers 
will be allowed. 
 

Example sinage posted by DDA in the Social District Common 
areas (seen below). These will be posted on posts clearly 
marking the Imlay City Downtown Social District Zones at least 
72 inches high for visibility in addition to the cement sidewalk 
signs. 

 

The signage on both the sidewalk and posts will be the only 
posting. There will be no physical barriers. Ordinance 
compliance is based upon reasonable adherence to the 
boundaries much like a speed limit sign. 

48



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

49



City of Imlay City Social District Operating and Maintenance Plan 
INTRODUCTION 

House Bill 5781 was signed into law on July 1, 2020, providing Michigan municipalities the 
authority to establish Social Districts where Social District Permits can be issued for the 
sale of to-go cocktails and outdoor alcohol consumption. 

WHAT IS A SOCIAL DISTRICT? 
A Social District is an area designated by the municipal government where consumers 
are able to drink beer, wine, or spirits in a designated commons area outside the walls of 
a licensed establishment. Social districts are overseen by the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 

WHA T IS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN A SOCIAL DISTRICT AND A COMMON AREA ? 
A Social District is the entire area designated by the Local Government, which includes 
the commons areas within the Social District. Establishment of a Social District does not 
mean consumers may drink alcoholic beverages throughout the entire district. 
Consumption of those beverages is only permitted within the defined commons areas. 
The Michigan Liquor Control Commissions defines a commons area as area(s) within the 
established Social District that are clearly designated and marked by the Local 
Government and that are shared by and contiguous to the premises of at least two 
qualified licensees. Social Districts can include more than one common area. 

WHAT IS A QUALIFIED LICENSEE? 
The words "qualified licensee" shall mean any of the following: (i) a retailer that holds a 
license, other than a special license, to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on the licensed 
premises; (ii) a manufacturer within an on-premises tasting room permit issued under 
Section 536 of 1998 PA 58; (iii) a manufacturer with an off-premises tasting room license 
issued under Section 536 of 1998 PA 58; and (iv) a manufacturer that holds a joint off 
premises tasting room license issued under Section 536 of 1998 PA 
58. 

HOW CAN BUSINESSES PARTICIPATE? 

Just because a business is located within a Social District does not mean the business 
may participate Businesses need to go through a permitting process with the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission to obtain a Social District Permit which allows them to serve 
to go beverages within the established common areas. 

PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN 

This plan is in-place to comply with requirements outlined in House Bill 5781 and required 
by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. This plan can change at any time per the 
discretion of City Commission and City Administration. This plan includes steps that the City 
will take to maintain and operate the Social District and commons areas to maintain 
consumer and resident safety. 

 
 
 
Brett D. Selby 
Chief of Police 
Imlay City Police Department 

50



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SOCIAL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
150 N. Main Street | Imlay City, MI 48444 

810-724-2135 ext 1307 | icdda.com 

51



Contents  
BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND COMMONS AREA(S) ........................................................................................... 3 

PUBLIC SAFETY .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

WASTE MANAGEMENT.................................................................................................................................. 4 

SIGNAGE AND HOURS OF OPERATION .......................................................................................................... 4 

BEVERAGE CONTAINERS ................................................................................................................................ 4 

TEMPORARY COMMONS AREAS & SPECIAL EVENTS ..................................................................................... 5 

COMMUNICATION WITH SOCIAL DISTRICT PERMIT HOLDERS ...................................................................... 5 

Exhibit A – Social District Logo....................................................................................................................... 6 

Exhibit B – Social District Boundary & Commons Areas ................................................................................ 7 

Exhibit C – Qualified Licensees and Addresses .............................................................................................. 8 
 

52



BACKGROUND 
On July 1, 2020, Governor Whitmer signed House Bill 5781 into law creating the Social District Permit. The 
governing body of a local governmental unit may designate a Social District within its 
jurisdiction. Qualified licensees whose licensed premises are contiguous to the commons area within the 
Social District, and who have been approved for and issued a Social District Permit, may sell alcoholic 
liquor (beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, spirits, or mixed drinks) on their licensed premises to customers who 
may then consume the alcoholic liquor within the commons area of the Social District. 

The City of Imlay City, in an effort to continue the revitalization of the downtown and increase 
opportunities for business and recreation, is creating a social district that encompasses all qualified 
licensees within the downtown and allows for consumption at multiple locations throughout the district 
under the management of the Downtown Development Authority. 

 

 

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND COMMONS AREA(S) 
Exhibit B depicts the social district boundary, the commons area(s), and the location of qualifying licensees. 

Exhibit C includes the names and addresses of all qualified licensees within the social district. 
 

Current qualified licensees include: 
 

• Third and Main 
• Botanas El Piaza 
• Imlay City Eagles 

 

 
Additional commons areas may be designated if new qualified licensees are established within the district, 
enabling a new area to meet the requirements for a commons area as defined in MCL 436.1551(8)(a). 

Temporary commons areas may be established in conjunction with events that are to take place within 
the district boundary. Temporary commons areas must be approved by the City in conjunction with an 
event application. Temporary commons areas may occur on public streets if the street is closed to all 
vehicle traffic with the exception of emergency vehicles. 

 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
The City of Imlay City Police Department will provide law enforcement services to the social district. In 
accordance with existing protocol, at least one officer will be designated to patrol the City until midnight 
each night. The officers on patrol will be jointly responsible for providing services within the social 
district. 

During special events and any time when the district is anticipated to see significant crowds and activity, 
City Police will issue a request to staff for special patrol officers in addition to those regularly scheduled. 

53



For emergency purposes, City police are located adjacent to the east end of the social district boundary. 

The Imlay City Fire Department will respond to all fire, and rescue, issues within the district aided by 
Lapeer County EMS.  

 

 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Trash receptacles will be available throughout the district and its consumption areas. If needed, new 
receptacles for permanent/long-term use will be provided and will match those placed elsewhere 
throughout downtown. 

Receptacles will be serviced weekly by the City’s internal Department of Public Works (DPW), and upon 
request for special events. 

 

SIGNAGE AND HOURS OF OPERATION 
Posted standard hours of operation will run:  
Sunday – Thursday (daily) 12 pm until 9 pm 
Friday – Saturday 12 pm – 11:00 pm 

Temporary commons areas may request special hours of operation in conjunction with an event planned 
within the social district. The requested hours of operation will be included in the request for a temporary 
commons area. 

Signage will be placed throughout the social district to denote the boundaries of the district and its 
designated consumption areas. Some signage may include a QR code linked to a webpage which includes 
key information pertaining to the social district. Such information may include, but is not limited to: hours 
of operation, a list of social district permit holders, and any upcoming special events. 

Signs may be posted using any of the following methods, where appropriate: 

• Using stanchions 
• On building walls 
• On street lamps or other posts 
• At entrances/exits to social district permit holders 

Social District Permit Holders will be required to post signage within, or affixed to, their establishment 
which includes the district standard hours of operations and map of commons areas. 

BEVERAGE CONTAINERS 
A district logo has been designed and is shown in Exhibit A. 

Stickers featuring the logo of the social district will be available for purchase from the City at various 
sizes, not to exceed 16 ounces. 

54



The DDA will provide one thousand (1000) 2” round stickers to each license holder within the social 
district in January of each calendar year. Businesses in need of additional labels will submit an order to 
the DDA Director by email or a request form located on the DDA website (icdda.com) noting the 
quantity needed. Orders will be placed by DDA staff within a week, and shipped directly to the business. 
An invoice for all charges related to the order will be sent to the business and must be paid within two 
weeks of the order’s arrival to the business. 

Businesses are required to indicate a drink has been sold by their establishment by including the business’s 
logo, trade name, or other feature unique to the social district permittee on the cup itself. This may be 
accomplished by placing a sticker on the cup, or by choosing a high-resolution graphic that can be added 
to the standard cup design and printed with the district logo at the license holders expense.  

Businesses are encouraged to write the initials and/or birthdate of the individual to whom each alcoholic 
beverage is sold on the cup itself. This recommendation exists to help prevent over service and unlawful 
transfer of alcoholic beverages to minors, and to promote the general health and safety of the community. 

 

 

TEMPORARY COMMONS AREAS & SPECIAL EVENTS 
Events planned within the social district may request a temporary commons area and special hours of 
operation in conjunction with the planned event. Temporary commons areas may occur on public streets 
if the street is closed to all vehicle traffic with the exception of emergency vehicles. Temporary commons 
areas, special hours of operation, and requests for additional waste management services will be reviewed 
and approved by the City in conjunction with the standard event application. 

Some permanent/fixed district signage may include a QR code link to a webpage where information 
regarding the social district will be available, including planned alterations to the social district commons 
areas and hours of operation. 

 

 

COMMUNICATION WITH SOCIAL DISTRICT PERMIT HOLDERS 
Social District Permit holders will be required to submit an email address to the City and the DDA for use 
when communicating important information that pertains to the social district. Such information may 
include, but is not limited to, upcoming special events and temporary commons areas. 

55



Exhibit A – Social District Logo 
 

 

 

 

56



Exhibit B – Social District Boundary & Commons Areas 
 
 
 
 
 

 

57



Exhibit C – Qualified Licensees and Addresses 
 

Third/Main, Inc. 
 244 E. Third Street 
Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
 
Botana’s El Paiza, Inc.  
234 E Third Street 
Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
 
Imlay City Eagles 
170 S Almont Ave 
Imlay City, MI 48444 

 

58



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10d: WinterFest 2024 Financial Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Director Malzahn has prepared a summary of expenses for WinterFest 2024 
and a recap of expenses associated with the holiday decorations including: 
Christmas Tree lighting, Gazebo Lighting, Third Street & Almont Ave Tree(s) 
Lighting; City Hall lighting, new décor purchases. 

 

Items Attached: Event Spreadsheet 
 
  
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

 

 

 

59



Entertainment Details Cost DDA Paid Chamber Paid
Grinch / Elf on Shelf 12:00-4:00 $800.00 $800.00
Santa 11:00-2:00 / 4:30-7:30 $300.00 $300.00
Firewood donated
DJ - Amy Forti 1:00-4:00 / 5:00-7:30 $75.00 $75.00
1st Responder Vehicles 1:00-4:00 $0.00
Live Nativity 1:00-4:00 $0.00
Petting Farm 1:00-4:00 $0.00

Giveaways
light up wands 630 pieces $410.00 $410.00

Craft Stations $0.00
State Farm - Trisha Kostranza
The Print Shop Bookmarks
JG's Used Books
Heavenly Sweets Take-Home Kit
King and King
Hispanic Services Center

Parade $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Candy Canes
Lunch w/Santa 3 hours

Advertising/Marketing
WinterFest Corro Signs Print Shop $250.00 $250.00
Newspaper Ads TCT $247.50 $247.50 $247.50
Event Posters TCT $50.00 $25.00 $25.00
Day of Corro Signs $142.00 $142.00
Billboard DDA In-Kind $800.00 $800.00

Other
Porta Potties $155.25 $155.25

Kringle Market
Vendors Revenue -$780.00
Credit Processing Fees $0.00
Market Manager setup & day o27.5 hours $580.00
Kringle Market Signage $100.00

Total Expenses $3,129.75 $2,904.75 $572.50
Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00
Grand Total $3,129.75 $2,904.75 $572.50
DDA Budget $4,000.00

Holiday Décor Installation $7,750.00
Replacement Bulbs $266.87
Candy Canes/Tree Topper $6,979.00

Total Streetscape Maintenance $14,995.87

60



Directors Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: January 13, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Items Attached: January Report 
Weekly email reports 

Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

61



  Director’s Report – January 2025 

Promotions/Events 
• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook and Instagram.
• Staff and I created ads, social media postings, message board sign ads
• Updated website calendar of events and other happenings

Economic Development 
• Met with application for incubator space lease
• Met with several business owners about possible tenants in their downtown buildings.

Place Making/Streetscape 
• Scheduled repair work for the electrical flood light at Third Street boulevard entrance

Grants: 
• Continued writing grant submission narrative for RAP 3.0

Billboard: 
• Created and submitted artwork for King & King Campaign

Imlay City Façade Corp 
• Processed façade grant applications
• Created spreadsheet matrix for application submissions

Meetings and Other:  
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings.
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments.
• Made updates to the DDA website for 2025 information.
• Presented DDA proposal to the Third Street Properties Ad-Hoc Committee
• Attended January 7th City Commission Meeting to present Informational Meeting Packet
• Attend monthly department head meeting
• Attended the monthly Hispanic Cultural/Services meeting
• Attended the MDA Lunch & Learn Web meeting
• Prepared meeting minutes, agendas, action item sheets, and board packets regular DDA meeting, and Imlay

City Façade Corp meeting on January 13th meetings.

62



From: Christine Malzahn
To: "jgenord@icdda.com"; wbargen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; "byockey@imlaycity.org";

jkempf@imlaycity.org; kjorgensen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com;
"jmontoya@icdda.com"

Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending November 15th
Date: Friday, November 15, 2024 3:39:00 PM
Attachments: 2024.11.4.24 Special Meeting Minutes.docx

image001.png
2024.11.4 Imlay Facade Corp Meeting Minutes.docx
Imlay City Facade Corp GRANT Application.pdf
Facade Corp Loan & Grants Guidelines updated 2024.doc

Hello All,
 
It’s been a busy busy two weeks since our last meeting.  I attended the MDA Fall Workshop
conference in Ann Arbor last Thursday and Friday – it was great to hear and bring back some
new ideas on DDA Best Practices, economic development tools, and volunteerism.  I’m eager
to share this information and put it into practice.  Think Main Street America…. Together we
can do this!
 
Attached you will find the meeting minutes for both the DDA and Façade Corporation.  Kindly
let me know if you see anything that needs to be corrected.
 
Also attached is the Imlay Façade Corp Grant Application for projects.  You may have seen this
posted on Facebook or our website, but I’m sharing it with you if you have a project that
qualifies or know of anyone looking for an opportunity to improve their building.  Note the
deadline is December 13th – so we will need to hold a special meeting on the 16th to score the
applications!  Are you available?
 
If possible, please plan to attend the city commission meeting next Tuesday.  The
commissioners will entertain our offer to purchase the Fire Hall and old DPW property.  I know
there is some opposition to the terms in the contract, but hopefully, we can encourage the city
commission to work with the Façade Corporation to help us improve these parcels.
 
WinterFest planning is moving along.  As of yesterday, the Kringle Market vendor spaces are
SOLD OUT (we now have a waiting list in case the last few do not pay their booth fees).
 Reservations for Lunch with Santa is also full – this year we had room for 160 people! Amazing
show of interest.
 
Watch for the holiday decorations to be installed soon – I’m excited to see how the new
addition of colored lamps looks in downtown.
 
Lastly, our 5 new wayfinding signs are installed along Van Dyke – they look great!
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director

63

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org



1

1





IMLAY CITY

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY



Special Meeting 

November 4, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, November 4, 2024, at Imlay City Fire Hall, 571 E. Borland, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

	Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:33 pm



2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll.

	Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Jessica Montoya, Justin Shattuck, John Genord, Steve Robbins, Mayor Joi Kempf, Chairman Walter Bargen

        Absent: Neil Docherty (excused), Barbara Yockey (arrived 5:41 pm)		

	Also Present: Chris Bishop, Sam Moore

           Quorum Present



4. CONSENT AGENDA

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to approve the consent agenda items as presented. Consent agenda items include:

	Meeting agenda with additions; regular meeting minutes October 14, 2024

	FINANCIAL REPORTS – through October 31, 2024; DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 

Director Malzahn reported that tax revenue was received for $70,624.56 and MI Community Stabilization funds were received of $18,333.53, which is less than anticipated in our budget.

		Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report

	All in Favor 8 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. CORRESPONDENCE – none



6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none



7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Item will be discussed during closed session



8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none



9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –

A. City/DDA Revenue Sharing MOU / City Services Negotiating Committee Recommendation

The Board reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding, drafted by city manager Horton detailing the results from meetings the negotiating committee held with city management. Terms of the MOU include an annual administrative transfer of 15% of the total DDA annual city tax capture to help offset city-borne costs associated with the downtown area.  The revenue sharing will include services utilized by the DDA for city staff (bookkeeper, clerk/treasurer, etc) plus office space.  Furthermore, the DDA agrees to continue to pay the monthly utility charges to operate the street lighting in the downtown area (but not those on municipal-owned properties), monthly usage fees for office equipment, insurance coverage on all DDA assets, and for lawncare maintenance of the grass in the downtown area parks/depot drive. 

Under this new MOU the DDA will now capture monthly interest income on its fund balance and will look to reduce utility costs by converting the downtown lights to LED.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the Revenue Sharing Agreement as presented, pending confirmation on interest payments from the city treasurer.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



B. 2024 Farmers Market Final Report

Market Manager Chris Bishop presented her completed reporting documents with state agencies for the 2024 market season.  Detailed reports for sales and attendance were provided to the Board.  Discussion was held for potential changes to next season's market (times, number of weeks, location etc)

NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED



10. NEW BUSINESS



A. Façade Grant Application

Director Malzahn recommended the following amendments be made to the Façade Grant Application to better align the grant program to the mission of the DDA. Add the following point to the guidelines:

· The property where the work is to be done MUST be occupied and open to the public with regular business operating hours.

Add the following point under the ineligible projects list:

· Projects considered routine maintenance (cleaning, power washing, trash removal etc.)

MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen to amend the Façade Grant Application as presented.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



B. 2025 Regular Meeting and Event Dates

Director Malzahn presented a list of proposed meeting, concert and informational meeting dates.  In accordance with the open meetings act the meetings must be published annually and easily available to the public.  Malzahn will post on the DDA website and publish in the TCT newspaper.  

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve and publish the 2025 calendar dates for meetings and events as presented and to cancel the November 18, 2024 regular meeting due to lack of agenda items.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



C. Annual Audit Report

The DDA is required by law to have an annual audit completed by an independent professional.  Per the city-awarded contract, King & King Accounting performs this billable service for the DDA as part of the City of Imlay City annual audit.  Director Malzahn provided DDA-related results to the Board.  The full audit report will be presented to the City Commission at their November 19th meeting.

The DDA was invoiced and paid $817.37 to King and King this fiscal year. 

NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED



CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition

MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 5:59 pm	 

 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:09 PM



MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins for support of the offer to purchase the three city-owned parcels by the IC Holdings Corporation.

		Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Montoya, Genord, Bargen

NAYS –Shattuck, Yockey, Kempf

MOTION CARRIED 6/3







11.  DIRECTORS REPORT

Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for November 2024.  At the meeting Malzahn also reported that she ordered more c7 lamps for the holiday decorations because the DPW in preparations noted a shortage.  She also reported a new business was coming to 151 E. Third Street, and that the owner had reached out to her.  Malzahn drafted a MOU for the sharing of the Fire Hall space for the Kringle Market based on an understanding reached at the city commission meeting with lease tenant J&J Liquidators.



12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none



14. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 pm

All in Favor 9 Ayes/Nays 0 

MOTION CARRIED 5/0



Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, December 9, 2024, at 5:35 PM





Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director



DDA APPROVED: 



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:







DDA SPECIAL  MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 4, 2024

PAGE 1










1

1





IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION



Regular Meeting 

November 4, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Imlay City Façade Corporation was held on Monday, November 4, 2024, at Imlay City Fire Hall, 571 E. Borland, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 6:21 pm



2. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll:

	Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, Steve Robbins, Jessica Montoya, John Genord, Barbara Yockey, Mayor Joi Kempf, Chairman Walter Bargen

	Absent: , Neil Docherty

	Also present: Christiana Bishop, Sam Moore

           Quorum Present



3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	MOTION by Yockey supported by Jorgensen to approve the agenda with the addition of NB 6D Authorized Signers.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the October 14, 2024 minutes as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



6.  NEW BUSINESS



A. Façade Grant /Loan Application

The Board reviewed the revised Grant/Loan application. Sam Moore was present to speak on behalf of the I-69 Corridor Group who will process applications and assist the applicants' creditworthiness determinations.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the Façade Corp Grant/Loan Application as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



B. Façade Corp Loan/Grant Procedures

Director Malzahn explained the changes made to the form.  She reviewed this recommendation with the Construction Code Authority to ensure that it aligned with current zoning ordinances.  This form will need to be released asap to building owners so that a project pipeline can be secured.  This is needed to meet the requirements of the RAP 3.0 Façade Grant that the Board would like to submit.

	MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Davis to adopt the Façade Corp Loan/Grant Procedures as presented

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



C. DBA IC Holdings Corporation

The Board reviewed form 541-08-15, as completed by Director Malzahn, for the formal DBA filing of the Imlay City Façade Corp to assume the name IC Holdings Corporation.

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Kempf to authorize Chair Bargen to sign the DBA and Director Malzahn to file with the State office.

AYES – Davis, Kempf, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Montoya, Yockey, Robbins, Genord, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



D. Authorized Signers (added item)

Chair Bargen reported that the signature card on file at Choice One Bank has no current Board members listed as authorized signers.  He recommends that signers updated include: City Manager, City Clerk, Façade Corp Director.

	MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to authorize the Imlay City City Manager, City Clerk, and Façade Corp Director to be signers on Imlay City Façade Corp Bank accounts at Choice One Bank.

AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Montoya, Robbins, Genord, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition

MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 6:35 pm	 

 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:46 PM



MOTION by Robbins, supported by Genord to approve the purchase agreement as written with the addition of an integration clause.

AYES – Robbins, Genord, Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Montoya, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



7.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – Director Malzahn updated the Board on the status of the purchase of Kitty’s Place.  The DDA has received back the earnest deposit monies and was offered a mutual release form.  The Seller no longer is interested in moving the purchase to closing and has secured a new buyer.



9.       ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 pm

All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 







Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, Executive Director





FAÇADE CORP BOARD APPROVED:



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:







IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORP. MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 4, 2024

PAGE 1






IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION 
Building Rehabilitation Program 


150 N. Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444 | 810.724.2135 ext 1307 | imlaycityfacadecorp@icdda.com 
 


 


GRANT APPLICATION 
Prior to completing or if you need assistance with completing this application, please contact Director Christine Malzahn 
who will facilitate questions/concerns associated with this grant program.  ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 
3:00 PM December 13, 2024 to qualify for this round of funding. 
 


APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
NAME: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________________________________  


BEST PHONE #: ___________   Business  Mobile  Home  
EMAIL:  ________________________ _____________________ 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
OWNER ENTITY NAME: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 


DBA (if different):  _____ EIN # (if applicable): ______________________  


ADDRESS:   ________________________________________  


PHONE: _________  WEBSITE:____________________________________  


TYPE/CATEGORY OF PROPERTY:    ____ ___ 


CURRENT ZOINING: _____________________  


TAX CLASSIFICATION OF OWNER ENTITY: 


 Corporation   LLC  Partnership  Proprietorship  S-Corp  Individual 


PROPERTY IS:  Vacant  Occupied - List Tenants:       


FACILITY/BUILDING IS:  Owned      Leased      Rented  Looking for Space  


PROPERTY IS:  Owned by Business  Owned by Applicant     Owned by Other    


SQUARE FOOTAGE CURRENTLY OCCUPIED:    
SQUARE FOOTAGE ACTIVATED AS A RESULT OF PROJECT:   


 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
AMOUNT OF FINANCING ALREADY SECURED FOR PROJECT: $     


SOURCE OF FUNDS:_______   


AMOUNT YOU and/or OTHER OWNERS PLAN TO INVEST: $  


 
LIST OTHER INVESTORS/OWNERS IF APPLICABLE: 
Name:  Name:  
 


Name:  Name:  
 
 



mailto:imlaycityfacadecorp@icdda.com





 
GRANT PROGRAM INFORMATION: 
Revitalization grant funding is limited to actual funds awarded to the Imlay City Façade Corp through State and Federal 
grant dollars up to a maximum of $500,000 or 50% of eligible costs.  This grant program requires a 50% match from the 
property/business owner(s).  Funds are contingent upon MEDC RAP 3.0 Façade Corp funding, partial awards may be 
approved based on the number of applications received and the amount of State funding awarded to the Imlay City 
Façade Corp.   
 
All qualified properties must be located in or contribute to the Imlay City TIF district.  Buildings must be owner-occupied 
or leased to a business entity with regular business hours open to the public. 
 
Projects must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program (see Façade Loan 
Program and Revitalization Grant Design Guidelines & Procedures). 
 
Projects must be completed within 18 months of the grant award.  Any project costs incurred prior to grant award 
contract execution are not reimbursable. 
 
All grant awards require timely reporting requirements and are subject to the terms and conditions of the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation or other grant awarding agencies. 
 
All applications will be evaluated and scored by the Imlay City Façade Corp., based on: 


1. Location 
2. Capacity to complete the project 
3. Long-term impacts  
4. Financial Viability 
5. Local Impact Considerations (The project should demonstrate how it supports the vision and goals stated in the 


Imlay City master plan or the DDA TIF plan) 
 
Eligible Costs  
"Eligible Costs” are at least one, or any combination, of the following expenditures:  


a. Acquisition or costs for real property;  
b. Fees or costs for alteration, new construction, improvement, demolition, or rehabilitation of buildings of 


an approved project, including utility tap fees, and fees and costs paid to a governmental entity for 
permits, zoning, and inspections;  


c. Costs associated with site improvements such as access (including ADA improvements) and streetscaping 
elements such as lighting, fencing, street furniture, etc.;  


d. Fees or costs for site improvements, including a surface parking lot, parking garage, parking ramp, 
utilities and public infrastructure, such as roads, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, lighting, grading 
and land balancing;  


e. Real estate developer fees not to exceed 4% of total project costs;  
f. Other costs associated with real estate or place-based infrastructure development may be considered on 


a case-by-case basis.  
 


Award Disbursement  
Awards will be disbursed in two parts. The first disbursement will be for up to fifty percent (50%) of the eligible costs 
submitted, not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the grant; and, upon Project completion, up to fifty percent (50%) of 
eligible costs submitted, not to exceed the remaining balance of the grant.  
 
There will be no more than two disbursements per project. 


 
  







GRANT REQUEST INFORMATION: 


GRANT REQUEST (check all boxes that apply) 
Note: All awarded grants require a 50% recipient match. Funds are limited  


 Architecture Services  


 Elevator  


 Fire Suppression 


 Vault Fill-In  


 Professional Services-Access Study  


 Exterior Buildings Renovations (must provide detailed descriptions/renderings) 


 Interior Building Improvements (must provide detailed descriptions/renderings) 


 


TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST: $   TOTAL GRANT REQUESTED: $   
ESTIMATED START DATE:   ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE:      


WILL GRANT CREATE NEW RESIDENTIAL UNITS?  No  Yes - #:   


WILL GRANT REDEVELOP EXISTING RESIDENTIAL UNITS?  No  Yes- #:    
WILL THE COMPLETION OF PROJECT BE DETERMINED BY GRANT AWARD? 


  No  Yes - Please provide proof (via pro forma) 


PROVIDE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT: 


 


 


 
APPLICATION CHECKLIST: 
Please ensure the following are submitted with your application: 


 Completed Application Form          Project Pro-Forma  Detailed Cost Estimate(s)  


 Detailed Project Timeline                Design Renderings 


 All existing lien holder agreements (if applicable)  
Note: Applicants are requested to be present at the time of the application’s review. Other documentation could be requested if 
deemed necessary by Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA. Additional information that could be requested are: Credit Reports for all 
business/owners; Proof of equity investment; Personal/business tax returns; Current business financial statement; Cash flow 
statements; Copy of lease/purchase agreement; Commitment letters from other lenders/project participants; Cost Estimates-all 
items being purchases with RLF monies; Articles of incorporation, partnership, and/or operating agreements. 


 
By signing this form, I, the applicant, certify that all information contained above is true and complete to my best knowledge and 
belief. Applicant understands this application and any other information received with it will be retained whether this request is 
approved or denied. 


Applicant Signature:  Date Signed:   
 
Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA Only:  
 
Application Received By:   Date Received:  







 





		IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION

		Building Rehabilitation Program

		Applicant Information:

		Property Information:

		Financial Information:

		Grant Program Information:

		Projects must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program (see Façade Loan Program and Revitalization Grant Design Guidelines & Procedures).



		Grant Request Information:

		Application Checklist:

		Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA Only:




Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation


FAÇADE LOAN PROGRAM 


and 


REVITALIZATION GRANTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

&


PROCEDURES


          Adopted by Executive on 7/11/2006


     Last Updated 11/15/2024

LOAN PROGRAM SUMMARY


Imlay City Façade Corporation has been established to facilitate the rehabilitation of the building facades in the commercial district of city of Imlay City. Building owners will have the opportunity to borrow money from the fund at an attractive interest rate for the improvement of their building facades.


AMOUNT:  The fund can loan up to $40,000 at a below-market interest rate for up to 5 years.

FUNDING:  The program is intended to leverage additional funds from private sources that it can use 


in conjunction with other loans.  

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR LOAN PROCESSING (see application for all requirements) *:


· Balance Sheets (3 years)


· Profit and Loss Statement (3 years)


· Projected Cash Flow (by month for 12 months)


· Projected Employment 


 (total persons expected to be employed during the term of the loan)


· Personal Financial Statement of the Applicant


· Verification of Proper Insurance Coverage


· Credit Check


· Verification of Property Tax Paid


· Tax Returns


* If the applicant has no previous financial statements the loan screening will be based on cash flow projections. 


DESIGN GUIDELINES:


The Imlay City Facade Corporation sets these guidelines. The Imlay City Facade Corporation before a loan approval must sign off on the proposed architectural design.


CONTACT INFORMATION:



Christine Malzahn, Executive Director



(810) 724-2135 ext 1307


Sam Moore, Lapeer Development Corp.

                          (810) 667-0080

City of Imlay City


Imlay City Facade Corporation / Façade Loan Corporation


Façade Loan Summary

Loan Procedures


Businesses located within the Imlay City TIF District may borrow up to $40,000 per façade at a below-market interest rate for up to 5 years. These rates are subject to change. 


The Façade Loan Fund is intended to leverage additional funds from private sources; therefore, it may be used in conjunction with other loans.


Marketing


The Imlay City Facade Corporation, located at 150 North Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444, will be responsible for the marketing of the Façade Loan Fund Program within the Imlay City TIF District 

Loan Pool Management


I-69 Regional Development Corporation will administer the loan fund and service the individual loans.


The loan fund is managed cooperatively by the following organizations:


1. The Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation is made up of members of the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority. It is a non-profit corporation that went into agreement with six community banks to provide low interest loans to rehabilitate building exteriors within the Imlay City TIF District 

2. The Imlay City Facade Corporation, created in 1976, has the charge to rehabilitate, revitalize, and promote Downtown Imlay City. As a result, the Imlay City Facade Corporation has financed and implemented a wide range of activities and infrastructure improvements to build and promote downtown Imlay City.


3. The I-69 Regional Development Corporation is a  non-profit Community Development Finance Institute that provides loans and business development coaching to entrepreneurs like you who would like to start or grow a business in Huron, Lapeer, Sanilac, St. Clair, Shiawasee, Tuscola and Genesee Counties, along with any counties with in 20 miles of the border of the aforementioned counties.

Loan Applicant Review

The Façade Loan Corporation and the I-69 Regional Development Corporation will review each loan on the ability to pay basis and have the authority to approve or disapprove a loan request. The I-69 Regional Development Corporation’s financial analyst will present a financial analysis for each loan request to the Façade Loan Corporation for their review.


Approval Criteria

1. The financial information submitted by the applicant and financial analysis prepared by the I-69 Regional Development Corporation adequately demonstrates an ability to repay the loan.


2. If necessary, the Imlay City Facade Corporation Director will make a determination that the building for which the loan is requested is in adequate condition to be rehabilitated and put to commercial use for the term of the loan.


3. The funds loaned are to be used on the façade of the building, except for interior items related to exterior work. The façade loan design guidelines shall establish the criteria for the use of the funds.

4. The usage of grant funds are subject to the eligibility requirements of the awarding agencies.

5. The conditions for all work done are set forth by the Imlay City Facade Corporation.


6. The applicant shall provide the following financial information to the I-69 Regional Development Corporation for the screening of the loan: 


· Balance Sheets (3 years)


· Profit and Loss Statement (3 years)


· Projected Cash Flow (by month for 12 months)


· Projected Employment 


           (total persons expected to employ during the term of the loan)


· Personal Financial Statement of the Applicant


· Verification of Proper Insurance Coverage


· Credit Check


· Verification of Property Tax Paid


· Tax Returns


Loan Approval / Disapproval


The Façade Loan Corporation shall make a formal decision on the approval of each approved design project.


The Closing Process

Upon the approval of the project and façade loan by the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation, the I-69 Regional Development Corporation coordinates the closing process. The closing fee will be paid at the time of the closing.


At the time of closing, the applicant may be asked to sign the following:


· Affidavit titled, “As to Use of Loan Proceeds for Business Purposes”


· Note


· Participating Business Loan Agreement


· A mortgage

Repayment

The I-69 Regional Development Corporation will provide the applicant with an amortization schedule and coupon book for the loan. Repayments shall begin monthly following the date of closing. Payments are made to the Imlay City Façade Corporation and mailed to the address provided on the closing documents.

In the event of delinquency, the Imlay City Development Corporation will do the following:


1. Make a telephone call to the loan recipient informing them of the delinquency.


2. Follow up the telephone call with a letter.


3. If payment is not received at that point, the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation will be notified. The corporation will review the loan and action to collect the loan may take place, pursuant to the loan agreements.


In the event it is the decision of the Façade Loan Corporation to take necessary legal action to recover losses of non-performing loans, the stated terms of the façade loan agreement shall become effective.


City of Imlay City


Imlay City Facade Corporation / Façade Loan Corporation


Revitalization Grant Program Summary


Revitalization grant funding is limited to actual funds awarded to the Imlay City Façade Corp through State and Federal grant dollars and requires a 50% match from the property/business owner(s).


All qualified properties must be located in or contribute to the Imlay City TIF district.  Buildings must be owner-occupied or leased to a business entity with regular business hours open to the public.


Must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program. 

All grant awards require timely reporting requirements and are subject to the terms and conditions of the Michigan Economic Development Corporation or other grant awarding agencies.

Eligible Costs 

"Eligible Costs” are at least one, or any combination, of the following expenditures: 


a. Acquisition or costs for real property; 


b. Fees or costs for alteration, new construction, improvement, demolition, or rehabilitation of buildings of an approved project, including utility tap fees, and fees and costs paid to a governmental entity for permits, zoning, and inspections; 


c. Costs associated with site improvements such as access (including ADA improvements) and streetscaping elements such as lighting, fencing, street furniture, etc.; 


d. Fees or costs for site improvements, including a surface parking lot, parking garage, parking ramp, utilities and public infrastructure, such as roads, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, lighting, grading and land balancing; 


e. Fees or costs for the addition of machinery, equipment or fixtures for an approved project; 


f. Professional fees or costs for an approved project for the following services: architectural, engineering, environmental, and surveying; 


g. Real estate developer fees not to exceed 4% of total project costs; 


h. Other costs associated with real estate or place-based infrastructure development may be considered on a case-by-case basis. 


Loan and Grant Design Procedures


The following is a list of the procedural steps necessary to be completed for the Façade Loan or Grant funds. If it is necessary for your project to deviate from these procedures, the Imlay City Facade Corporation or the Director must be notified at (810) 724-2135 ext 1307.


1. Call the Executive Director to inquire about your possible project. At the initial call, the Executive Director will be able to advise you as to whether your property is within the Downtown TIF District.


2. The potential applicant should then receive a copy of the design guidelines along with the cover letter indicating that the guidelines should be passed on to the applicant’s architect if the applicant has one.


3. The main objective of the Façade Loan Fund is for the restoration and preservation of the buildings, and to maintain the character of the downtown area whenever possible. 


4. The Imlay City Facade Corporation will give a rebate up to $1,000 for design services provided by a licensed architect.


5. The applicant, their licensed architect, the Executive Director, a representative of the Construction Code Authority, the Imlay City Zoning Administrator and an Imlay City Façade Corp board member will meet to discuss preliminary design considerations. At this time, questions regarding procedures can be clarified and the design guidelines will be reviewed.


6. The drawing and written recommendations of the architect for a rehabilitation or new construction project are submitted to the Executive Director. At this time, the project can be evaluated for adherence to the guidelines. 


7. The Executive Director will send a letter with a recommendation to the Imlay City Facade Corporation.  At this time, the Executive Director will do one of the following:


1. Recommend that the Imlay City Façade Corp approve the design project


2. Recommend that the design be submitted to another architectural firm for review


3. Recommend that the applicant and architect reconsider their choice of design if it is not in conformance with the guidelines.


8. The Imlay City Facade Corporation will formally review the project design with the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator and either approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove.


9. Additional meetings may be requested by the applicant and or their architect to review design work in progress or to consider issues that may arise.

Design Guidelines for New Construction


The following are recommended and not recommended guidelines for new façade construction.


Recommended


Maintain compatibility with the downtown district through proper scale, color, design patterns, roofing, windows, and other elements distinctive to the district.


Infill buildings (new buildings between adjacent to existing buildings) should be placed in a plan parallel to and with the same setback as the adjacent building(s).


Use sand mold or semi-smooth faced brick of red, pink, cream, or light brown color. Use appropriately colored mortar (red or gray). Corbeled brick, soldier coursing and other brick patterns similar to original structure patterns should be encouraged.


 Window patterns and styles should be compatible with historic buildings. Repetitive patterns on the second stories are encouraged. Street level display windows should be compatible with historic buildings.


Building facades should terminate at the upper level with a parapet wall of masonry, which can be straight or could have a corbelled brick or brick patterns. 


Standing seam metal roofing on sloped roofs can be encouraged if proper colors are used.


Signs should be simple, flat against buildings, of good design compatible with historic buildings.


A color palette should be used that is complimentary to the building’s surroundings.

Every attempt to duplicate exact period architecture should be made.


All necessary permits would need to be pulled through the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator’s Office.


Not Recommended


Single story buildings should be discouraged when between multi story buildings or where the low scale will detract from the downtown district’s cohesive appearance.


Do not set new buildings back from the face of adjacent buildings or from the setback line of other buildings on the street.


Natural (silver colored) aluminum is not recommended


Mansard roofs or canopies at the secondary cornice (street level display windows) or at rooflines are not compatible with historic architecture.


Do not use wide vertical metal fascia or other similar fascia to terminate.


Back lit plastic signs, projecting two sided signs and oversized signs.


All necessary permits would need to be pulled through the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator’s Office.


Design Guidelines for Rehabilitation of Existing Buildings


The following are recommended and not recommended guidelines for the rehabilitation of existing façades.


Recommended


Windows may be replaced with similar windows of wood (preferred) or of aluminum with a clading of dark bronze finish. Windows should be of the same height.


Preferred treatment of windows would be the retention of checkrail patterns (4 over 4 windows, etc.)


Awnings of appropriate design are encouraged for display windows and for upper story windows.


Reconstruct window brows that are missing.


Reconstruct cornices where missing.


Remove mansard roofs and other non-confirming design elements.


Removing existing non-conforming materials such as wood or metal siding, aggregate faced panels, porcelain enamel panels, etc.


Remove non-conforming signs, large plastic letters, back lit plastic signs, etc.


A color palette should be used that is complimentary to the building’s surroundings.


Not Recommended


Natural (silver) aluminum replacement windows.


Covering over original architecture with wood siding, metal, aggregate faced panels, plaster, porcelain enamel or other contemporary siding.


Removal of cornices, windows brows, other original detailing.


The use of back-lit plastic signs, two sided signs, plastic letters or large signs.

Agreement for Façade Loan Architectural Assistance


The City of Imlay City Facade Corporation provides up to $1,000 in architectural assistance from a licensed architect for business owners and building owners located within the Downtown TIF District.


The purpose of the Façade Loan Fund is to encourage building and businesses owners to upgrade downtown buildings in a manner appropriate to the era of the building. The mission, design guidelines and procedures for the Façade Loan Program are provided in the accompanying Façade Loan Fund Procedures and Design Guidelines.


RECITALS


1. The Imlay City Facade Corporation is authorized to improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, equip and improve any buildings with the downtown development district for the use in whole or in part of any public or private persons or corporation.


2. The Board of Directors of the Imlay City Façade Corp has adopted a Development Plan authorizing the Façade Corp to provide public funds to assist in the restoration and revitalization of development area storefronts to provide an appearance that is aesthetically pleasing and complementary to the existing businesses.


3. The Imlay City Façade Corporation has adopted Program Guidelines for a Façade Loan Program to encourage high-quality and historically sensitive building improvements within the Downtown TIF District.


4. ____________________________ has requested architectural assistance from the Imlay City Façade Corporation and agrees to abide by the program procedures and requirements.  


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree to the following on the ___ day of _______:



______________________________ shall utilize the architect recommended by the Imlay City Façade Corporation for the development of sketches and limited design drawings.


In consideration for compliance with the Façade Loan Program guidelines, the applicant shall receive the aforementioned architectural assistance that will not exceed $1,000 from a licensed architect.


Before considering a loan for the applicant from the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation Fund, the proposed design shall be approved by the Imlay City Façade Corporation.


If the applicant fails to proceed with the implementation for the approved façade design through the Façade Loan, or any other sources of funds, the applicant shall be liable for a charge of $500.00 for the architectural services.


__________________________

_________________________


Executive Representative




Applicant


- 10 -





From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; "byockey@imlaycity.org";

jkempf@imlaycity.org; "jmontoya@icdda.com"; kjorgensen@icdda.com; "jgenord@icdda.com";
sdavis@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com

Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending November 22
Date: Friday, November 22, 2024 2:57:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Board Members,
 
Just checking in to give you a quick update on DDA activities this week.
 
I hope you’ve all seen the installation start of our holiday décor!  The DPW put up the light pole
décor and Summit Illuminations will be working on Lamb Steele Park decorations starting
tomorrow. Just in time for the snow to fall!
 
Both RFP (landscaping and Irrigation) were due today by noon.  We received 2 bids for irrigation
and 3 for landscaping.  Chris and I will be doing the bid openings this afternoon at 3:00 pm and
will have the results on our next meeting agenda.
 
Steve Robbins and I presented the Third Street property purchase agreement to City
Commission on Tuesday night.  As I anticipated, we met with some opposition and valid
concerns from the Commissioners.  The overall consensus however was for negotiations to
continue and for a revised PA to be brought forth to commission on December 3rd.  I met with
both Joi and Craig this afternoon and we agreed to have the city attorney draft a new document
adding the following elements:

1. A deed restriction for no residential construction
2. Indemnification clause
3. City leadership must be consulted and agreeable to any future sale to a private

entity, if not, they have the first right to purchase for our investment cost.
The other item discussed is the old sign shop and whether or not it should be included in the
offer – if it continues to be included that would mean that the DDA would be responsible for
the demolition costs.
If 3 or more DDA Board members wish to call a special meeting to discuss this further before
the PA goes to City Commission, please let me know, otherwise this will be on our agenda for
December 9th.  Please plan to attend the city commission meeting on Dec 3rd if you would like
to witness or participate firsthand.
 
I spent a good deal of time drafting our informational meeting packet for the 9th and sending
out meeting notices to all tax collecting authorities in our district.
 
Chris has been a tremendous help this week getting the fall décor taken down, distributing
WinterFest posters and organizing the vendors for Kringle Market.
 

64

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org






As a reminder city hall will be closed both Thursday and Friday next week for the holiday, and I
have scheduled an extra vacation day to travel on Wednesday to see my favorite littles.  You
can expect your Board packet on the 5th, if you need anything in the meantime, please let me
know. 
 
I wish all of you a wonderful Thanksgiving weekend spent doing your favorite things!
 
Gratefully,
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
 
150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307  |  Mobile: 586-801-0166
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org
 

 

65

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org


From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; jkempf@imlaycity.org;

"byockey@imlaycity.org"; "jmontoya@icdda.com"; "jgenord@icdda.com"; kjorgensen@icdda.com;
sdavis@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com

Subject: Week Ending December 13th
Date: Friday, December 13, 2024 3:46:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

2024.12.09 Informational Meeting Minutes.docx
2024.12.09.24 Regular Meeting Minutes.docx
2024.12.09 Imlay Facade Corp Meeting Minutes.docx

Happy Friday All,
 
Most of this week has been spent completing tasks that were approved at our meeting on last
Monday. 
 
I did receive a lot of questions on our call-out for project submissions for the façade grant and
did my best to provide answers.  We have received three applications so far and I anticipate a
fourth submittal soon.  Our sub-committee (Jorgensen, Robbins, Genord and Bargen) will
meet on Monday the 16th @ 5:35 to review and score the proposals.
 
Attached are all the minutes from the meetings, if you note anything that needs to be
corrected, please let me know. 
 
Chris has been working on a DDA newsletter, updating the EMC sign and scheduling constant
contact email blasts.  I also handed off to her the I 
AM Imlay Storytelling project.  I am confident that she can find us the participants we need to
get us up to 40 so we can complete the first installment.
 
The city ad-hoc committee has invited all parties interested in purchasing the fire hall/dpw
buildings to present a 10-min pitch next Wednesday.  I am preparing a presentation on behalf
of the DDA that I will present with Walt present to support.  If you have any thoughts you want
conveyed – please reach out to me soon.
 
Regards,
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
 
150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307  |  Mobile: 586-801-0166
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org
 

66

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org





1

1





IMLAY CITY

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY



Informational Meeting 

December 9 @ 5:00 PM

INFORMATIONAL MEETING MINUTES



A special meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, December 9, 2024, at the Imlay City Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Bargen called the meeting to order at 4:58 pm



2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. ROLL CALL – Executive DDA Director Malzahn called the roll:

	Present: Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, John Genord, Kim Jorgensen, Chair Walter Bargen, Mayor Barbara Yockey (arrived 5:01) Steve Robbins (arrived 5:02 pm), Joi Kempf (arrived 5:05 pm)	

	Absent: Neil Docherty, Jessica Montoya 



4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	MOTION by Davis, support by Shattuck to approve the agenda as presented. 

	All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none

	

6.	 NEW BUSINESS

a.  Bi-Annual Information Meeting Material

Director Malzahn presented the informational material packet she created and led the Board and meeting attendees through the 12-page document.  Highlights included:



The State of Michigan requires that Downtown Development Authorities hold two “informational meetings” per calendar year. Informational meetings are held for the purpose of informing the public of the goals and direction of the authority, including projects to be undertaken in the coming year.   Our DDA by-laws mandate that our informational meetings will be held in July and December in an effort to be aligned with the State requirement.  



The current DDA TIF plan you can scan the QR code on the front page and it will take you right to that document on our website icdda.com.  Just in case anyone is not familiar with the acronym TIF, it stands for Tax Increment Financing.  Imlay City City Commission adopted our TIF plan in 1985, it was updated and re-adopted in 2014 for a 30-year term.  It is this plan that determined the base taxable value rate when the plan was created that now allows for the DDA to capture 2.5 mills off the growth in property value of the initial values.  That is how the DDA is funded.



 If you turn to page 2 you will see a map of the DDA TIF District boundaries highlighted in red, that area is where the DDA captures its funding from.

A comprehensive breakdown of our approved 2024-2025 budget is on page 3.  It shows a balanced budget with revenues and expenses totaling $355,400.  According to the monthly financials provided at our regular meetings – actual revenues through November 30th are at 27.40% (with tax bills just being issued so we should see an increase in revenue in Jan and Feb) and actual expenditures are at 43.17% so we are trending right in alignment with the budget.



The three largest areas of expense in the budget are revenue sharing with the city and city service expenses that we fund at roughly 32%, DDA employee's wages and benefits at 29%, and streetscape/beautification at just under 16%.  On the revenue side the majority of funding is coming through the TIF tax capture for Imlay City coming in at 73%.


This past April the Board acted regarding Lapeer County Special Voted Mileages.  On the bottom of page 3 you see noted that we have confirmed opt-out status, not capturing the Lapeer EMS millage until 2026.  We will however begin to capture the Lapeer Public Safety, Senior Services and Veterans special voted millages with the condition of entering into revenue-sharing agreements with similar entities operating in and around Imlay City, to gift back to them 100% of the actual capture.  All three of those millages total around $40,000.



On page 4 you will find our mission statement and vision statement, which is taken right from the 2014 City approved TIF plan.  Our plan is a 30-year plan so we 20 years or so to continue working on it.  



I’d like to highlight and read for you an excerpt about the DDA from the TIF plan.  It reads:  “The authority was established in 1976, the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority is under the supervision and control of a board consisting of a chief executive officer of the municipality and no less than eight, nor more than twelve members as determined by the governing body of the municipality.

The function of the authority is to propose, finance and implement public improvements in the downtown development district. The Imlay City Downtown Development Authority is ultimately responsible for the revitalization of the downtown district as it is defined by Imlay City ordinance.”



Continuing on page 4 there is a quick recap of stats for 2024, showing that the DDA held 11 regular monthly meetings, and 1 special meeting.   We sponsored 8 summer concerts in the park, held 14 Farmers Market Thursdays, and worked with the Chamber of Commerce to bring two events to downtown – Merchant Trick or Treat Party and WinterFest 2024.



The DDA district welcomed five new businesses: Grooming By Miranda, El Ranchito, JG’s Used Book Store, Heavenly Sweets, J&J Liquidations.  We are eagerly anticipating the re-opening of Third & Main and Vanguard Sports Memorabilia later this month, and Meesch’s Ice Cream in the spring.



Not mentioned in the packet is the DDA-owned building at 150 Bancroft Street.  While currently unoccupied and listed for sale, the DDA hosted rent-free Collection Connection through March 2024.



Grants are the focus on page 5.  The DDA has submitted 6 grant funding applications in 2024 totaling over $13.2 million.  4 of our submissions have been awarded, totaling $79,000.  Unfortunately, Senator Gary Peters's office was unable to move our grant further at the Federal level, and we are awaiting the outcome of the newest Four County Community Foundations application for $12 million from the EPA Community Resilience grant.  If funded this would bring much-needed financial assistance to those economically challenged, it would also enlarge and enhance the Hispanic Services Center space and service abilities and it would build our new Community Resilience Pavilion in the Farmers Market area.

The DDA administers a Façade Grant program of its own.  Since January 1, 2024, the DDA has approved 8 façade grant applications totaling $14,854 for exterior building improvements and signage.  With a new application for a $5,000 request on your agenda at our Dec Meeting.



Page 6 provides a list of Goals and Direction taken from our TIF plan and shows the areas we focused on in 2024.  As you see, 20 out of 26 goals we prioritized last year have been completed, 6 are still active and listed as “work in progress”.   Our list of projects include:

· Renewed Lease and advertised on billboard located on M-53 (Cedar Street).

· Maintain and upgrade the DDA website as needed.

· Assist the city in becoming a Redevelopment Ready Community (ongoing but we did complete roughly 12 tasks)

· Promoted and managed the Imlay City Facade Grant Program.

· Leased and Advertised Retail Incubation Program @ 150 POP

· Created a new downtown marketing plan and print materials.

· Collaborated with other local organizations including the Chamber of Commerce, Lapeer Development Corporation, Rotary Club, Lapeer County Ed-Tech, & Imlay City Community Schools, Lapeer County DDA’s

· Hosted special events that draw people into the community including Farmers Market; Concert in the Park Series, and WinterFest.

· Replace deteriorated directional signage on MDOT roads.

· Replaced the electronic message board sign on Cedar Street.

· Developed the I AM Imlay City Community Storytelling project

· Replaced brick paver areas along Third & Almont Ave..  with additional grinding of raised areas as needed.

· Purchased additional trash receptacles, pet waste disposal systems for parks and downtown areas

· Designed custom bike racks and way-finding kiosk (the creations are still in manufacturing, but I’m told they should be completed soon).

· Re-striped, signed and performed maintenance on municipal parking lot behind King & King.

· Worked with the MEDC to engage assistance programs they offer to expand business recruitment. 

· Held round-table meetings with area developers to discuss mutual goals for the city.

· Worked with Wade-Trim Community Planer Kaitlyn Habben to engage community stakeholders and determine needs in the downtown area.

· Created a “Downtown Day” promo video in partnership with the Almont and Lapeer DDA’s.

· Continued discussions with CN Railroad for improvements to the viaduct including additional lighting, painting & beautification of the embankments. (This is on-going as we wait for labor costs to come from CN employees to perform the work)

· Researched available Facade Improvement grants (this is on-going as we work to get shovel ready projects approved in advance of our 3.0 grant submission in January. 

· Listed property for sale to generate additional revenue for use on blighted building remediation.

· Worked with EGLE for Third Street city-owned properties. We are still in negotiations with city leadership on purchase to help remediate the blighted properties.

· Applied for 2 community placemaking grants for funding of a pavilion structure.

· Worked to re-activate 1 re-development liquor license, and transfer of 1 escrowed resort license.

· Issued RFP too solicit proposals on city owned Third Street properties.

· Hired summer intern to increase social media presence and cross-market the DDA events in Spanish



On page 7 you see excerpts from our TIF Plan and the projects that have been prioritized for 2025.  They include:

· Working to assist Planning and Zoning to achieve Redevelopment Ready Community Status

· Engage in MainStreet USA Program

· ReDesign of website page for property listings

· Market Available Facade Grants

· Utilize newly created data sheet

· Apply for RAP 3.0 Funding for Imlay Facade Corp Building Redevelopment Program

· Expanded Constant Contact communications

· Facilitate quarterly stakeholder meetings

· Send out RFP for professional services for marketing services.

· Continue negotiations with CN Rail personnel

· Utilize MEDC RAP 3.0 Real Estate Development Grants

· Work to identify blighted properties that qualify for grant funding under IC Holdings Corp

· Work with City to create a new municipal parking lot on Third Street where the old sign shop is located

· Convert all downtown and municipal lots to LED lamps to maximum utility savings



Pages 8-10 provide you a snapshot of our online presence.  Our website (icdda.com) shows we have a reach of 7.3k people with 13.4K views to our site since January 1, 2024. Google gives us the biggest hit in a browser search with 5.1k hits and 4.4k direct visits.  



Stats for our DDA Facebook and Instagram pages (Downtown Imlay City, Imlay City Farmers Market) show a combined reach of over 100,000 viewers.  This growth I believe was in part by hiring a dedicated marketing intern this past summer as you can see by the data spikes over those months.  



Page 11 shows events that are currently being planned for the 2025.  Note that some of the dates are still subject to change. But we are working on the Summer Concert Line-up, a 22-week (extended) farmers market season, along with the I AM IMLAY City project reveal, Downtown Day Celebration, Merchant Trick or Treating and WinterFest 2025.



Wrapping up the report is the new Imlay City data marketing sheet that I created.  It contains some major demographic facts, highlights our location in proximity to major urban cities, and some fun facts about what makes Imlay City a great place to live, work, and do business.



7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

None heard



8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS - none



9. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, support by Docherty to adjourn the meeting at 5:20 pm

All in Favor 6 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director

DDA APPROVED:  



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:

DDA INFORMATIONAL MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 9, 2024

PAGE 1




1

1





IMLAY CITY

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY



December 9, 2024 Regular Meeting

MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, December 9, 2024, at Imlay City Municipal Offices, 150 N. Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

	Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:21 pm



2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. ROLL CALL  – Director Malzahn called the roll.

	Present: Justin Shattuck, Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Steve Robbins, Joi Kempf, John Genord, Mayor Barbara Yockey, Chairman Walter Bargen

	Absent: Neil Docherty, Jessica Montoya		

	Also Present: Chris Bishop

          Quorum Present



4. CONSENT AGENDA

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

	Consent agenda items include:

· Meeting Agenda; Meeting Minutes: Nov 4th Special Meeting; Nov 4th Closed Session

· Financial Reports – Ending November 30, 2024

· DDA Expenditure Report = $ 25,917.87; Check Register Report = $ 15,216.42; 

· Credit Statement – Oct & Nov; Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 221,638.01; 

· FY24-25 City administrative transfers; November Totals $5,690.99

	All in Favor 8 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. CORRESPONDENCE – none



6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none



7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

	338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Item will be discussed during IC Holdings Meeting



8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – 

· Rob Mette presented on behalf of the IC Chamber of Commerce, claiming 100% ownership of 4 fire pits purchased in 2023 via check to Tractor Supply. The pits were used during WinterFest 2024 and were removed by Chamber members from municipal property after the event to be stored at their location.  They will no longer need storage of their items (firepits, Santa chair, backdrop etc.).

· Michon Thompson spoke on behalf of Kaylee Kaeding, St. Paul Lutheran Church Youth Director thanked the DDA for the assistance at WinterFest during setup, she requested clearer communication going forward on dates/times, but that all went well during this year's event and they were pleased to participate.





9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

	None



10. NEW BUSINESS

202 E. Third Street Façade Grant Application

John Lengemann submitted a Façade Grant Application (only one estimate was included) to the DDA.  He is seeking funding for building exterior improvements in the amount of $5,000.00.  The Board reviewed the application.

MOTION by Genord, supported by Jorgensen to approve the Façade Grant request in the amount of $5,000 as submitted.	

Roll Call:  AYES – Genord, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Kempf, Davis, Robbins, Yockey, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Revenue Sharing MOU – Public Safety 

The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue generated by the 1.45 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Public Safety millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the ICPD. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to public safety improvements and services within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District.  Director Malzahn recommended that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Police Dept as presented.

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Shattuck, Genord, Jorgensen, Kempf, Robbins, Yockey, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Revenue Sharing MOU – Senior Services

	The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue generated by the .3916 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Services millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the Imlay City Senior Center. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the local Imlay City seniors and their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  Director Malzahn recommended that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year.

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Senior Center as presented.

Roll Call:  AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Shattuck, Genord, Kempf, Robbins, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Revenue Sharing MOU – Veterans

	The DDA reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding that was drafted by Director Malzahn.  The MOU establishes the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue generated by the 1.850 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Veterans millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the Imlay City VFW Post 2492. These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the local Imlay City veterans and their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  Director Malzahn recommends that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter into a revenue-sharing agreement with Imlay City VFW Post 2492 as presented.

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Genord, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Irrigation Services Proposals 

	The DDA reviewed proposals submitted to the RFP issued for Irrigation Services to assist with the sprinkler system infrastructure in the DDA District.  Two submissions were received

	Aqua Turf (current provider) ($600 start-up and winterization, $80 hr for repairs as needed) and Techseven Company from Shelby Twp. ($2280 start-up and winterization).

MOTION by Davis, supported by Genord to retain the services of Aqua Turg for the purpose of

	providing irrigation system services in the amount of $600 annually and enter into a contract for a 3-year term ending December 31, 2027.

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Genord, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Landscape / Annual Flowers Proposals 

	The DDA reviewed proposals submitted to the RFP issued for Landscape Services to assist with the annual flower plantings and maintenance in the DDA District.  Two submissions received - GreenScape Solutions (current provider) ($35,000 annual plantings, no submission for bid item #2 maintenance) and Fineline Landscape ($36,785 annual plantings, $11,500 maintenance = $48,285).  Director Malzahn recommended awarding the contract to Fineline for a 1-year contract to ensure that the flowers planted are warranted and maintained throughout the year.

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to retain the services of Fineline Landscape for the purpose of providing landscape services and annual flower planting in the amount of $48,285 and enter into a one-year contract ending December 2025.

Roll Call:  AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Genord, Robbins, Kempf, Bargen

		NAYS – Davis, Shattuck

MOTION CARRIED 6/2



Rotary Park Improvement Project 

Director Malzahn presented an improvement concept plan for Rotary Park that she has worked to create with Dana Walker.  The plan had been previously reviewed by the IC Rotary Club and the IC Parks & Rec, both organizations are in support of the project.  The Imlay City Parks Master Plan does not have any long term plans to fund capital improvements to that park area in the DDA district.



	The Board expressed interest and would be supportive but was concerned over committing to a specific dollar amount since the proposal did not contain final costs.  Malzahn discussed the grant application processes stating that in order to apply, proof of matching funds is usually required.



MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Genord to proceed with the Rotary Park improvement project, pending Parks Commission approvals, with a funding commitment of 10% of project costs.

Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Genord, Davis, Robbins, Shattuck, Kempf, Yockey, Bargen

		NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 8/0



Vice Chair Docherty arrived at meeting at 6:02 pm

Municipal Parking Lease Renewals

Director Malzahn asked for a discussion regarding DDA-facilitated lease agreements with several property owners for the use of their property as municipal parking that is set to expire in 2025.  These leases allowed private parking areas, mainly behind the businesses on Almont Ave to be used for public parking.  In exchange, the owners received maintenance and repairs to these areas.  Joi Kempf talked about her properties on Depot Drive that were under a similar lease agreement but have since expired and the areas reverted to the property owners.

The Board requested better documentation of the areas in question to ensure that the cost borne by the city is beneficial to the public not just the property owners.

MOTION by Yockey, supported by Genord to table the lease renewals, pending review of detailed area maps and current building ownership.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



11.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT

Director Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for November 2024.  



0.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION –

   Rob Mette spoke on behalf of the IC Chamber of Commerce, regarding the fire pits again.



0.   BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Mayor Barb Yockey commented on how great WinterFest was and the need for clear written agreements.



14. 	ADJOURNMENT

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Genord to adjourn the meeting at 6:19 pm

	All in Favor 9 Ayes/Nays 0 

	MOTION CARRIED 9/0





Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, January 13, 2025, at 5:35 PM





Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director



DDA APPROVED:



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:



DDA REGULAR MEETING MINUTES –DECEMBER 4, 2024

PAGE 1




1

1





IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION



Regular Meeting 

December 9, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Imlay City Façade Corporation was held on Monday, December 9, 2024, at Imlay City Municipal Offices 150 N. Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 6:23 pm



2. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll:

	Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, Steve Robbins, Neil Docherty, John Genord, Joi Kempf, Barbara Yockey, Chairman Walter Bargen

	Absent: Jessica Montoya

	Also present: Christiana Bishop

           Quorum Present



3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the agenda with the addition of Closed Session for property acquisition.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the November 18, 2024 minutes as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



6.  NEW BUSINESS



A. Façade Corp Grant Application and Scoring Matrix

The Board reviewed the Grant application and scoring matrix as drafted by Director Malzahn. This application will be used to intake projects for the RAP 3.0 Grant submission by the Façade Corp in January 2025.

MOTION by Genord, supported by Robbins to approve the Façade Corp Grant Application and scoring matrix as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



B. Façade Project Submission Review Meeting Date

Director Malzahn explained the intake process which will require all funding applications to be reviewed and scored.  Malzahn suggested forming a sub-committee to meet and perform this work, bringing back to the Board their recommendation on feasible projects.  Chair Bargan asked for volunteers.  Genord, Robbins, and Jorgensen will be on the committee along with Chair Bargen.  The meeting will be held on Monday, December 16th @ 5:35 pm

	NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED



C. CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition

MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 6:36 pm	 

 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 7:04 PM





7.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none heard



9.       ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, supported by Genord to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 pm

All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 







Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, Executive Director





FAÇADE CORP BOARD APPROVED:



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:



IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORP. MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 9, 2024

PAGE 1





From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com;

kjorgensen@icdda.com; "jmontoya@icdda.com"; "byockey@imlaycity.org"; jkempf@imlaycity.org;
"jgenord@icdda.com"; sdavis@icdda.com

Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending December 20th
Date: Friday, December 20, 2024 4:00:00 PM
Attachments: 2024.1.13 Agenda.doc

image001.png

Hello All,
 
I am sending you one last weekly update for this year.  Attached is the draft agenda for our next
meeting on January 13th.
 
This week was spent organizing and creating spreadsheets for the projects submitted for our
Façade Corp RAP 3.0 grant opportunity as well as writing the grant narrative.  I have sent what I
have completed off to Annie (the city's intern grant writer) for review. 
 
The DDA was invited by Mayor Yockey to pitch our purchase proposal to the ad-hoc committee
on Wednesday.  I made the presentation on behalf of the DDA since Walt was called to a work
meeting.  Hindsight is always an eye-opener after making presentations like this, so of course I
thought of some key points that should have been made after the fact, but I’m confident that
my speech represented the DDA’s interests in those properties.  The committee will be making
a recommendation to the city commissioners at their meeting on January 7th.
 
Chief Selby and I have been working on the documents needed for the Social District that we
are recommending be created for Imlay City.  I have created a management plan and logo for
the district and this will be on our January agenda.
 
Chris has been making phone calls to get people interested in the Veterans banners and the I
am Imlay City Storytelling project.  She also made and scheduled our social media posts for
the next two weeks (be sure to like, share and follow) us at Downtown Imlay City!
 
As a reminder city hall will be closed Dec 24th through Jan 1 for the holidays.  Chris and I will be
back in the office on Jan 2nd.  
 
I wish you all a very Merry Christmas and I look forward to working with each of you in 2025 to
make great things happen here in Imlay!
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
 
150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307  |  Mobile: 586-801-0166

67

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org



IMLAY CITY


DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

150 N. MAIN STREET


IMLAY CITY, MI 48444

Regular Meeting January 13, 2025

5:35 P.M.

Walter Bargen, Chair
Justin Shattuck, Board Member



Neil Docherty, Vice Chair 
Steve Robbins, Board Member

Kim Jorgensen, Secretary
Jessica Montoya, Board Member

Stu Davis, Treasurer
John Genord, Board Member 


Joi Kempf, Board Member
Barbara Yockey, Mayor
 


A G E N D A

1. CALL TO ORDER


2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CONSENT AGENDA –



AGENDA 

                     Meeting minutes: Informational Meeting and Regular Meeting December 9, 2024



FINANCIAL REPORTS: through December 31, 2024

DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 


DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report

5. Correspondence – (none)

6. Special Presentation (none)

7. Committee Reports 


8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION


9. Unfinished BUSINESS:  None

10. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Municipal Parking Lease Renewals


B. Social District Management Plan


C. Business Spotlight Podcasts


D. City Services MOU update

11. CLOSED SESSION – For the purpose of property acquisition (if needed)

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS


15. ADJOURNMENT

                  Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director                                                                 Posted December 20, 2024

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: February 10, 2025








	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting January 13, 2025
	ADPBAA1.tmp
	A. 202 E. Third Street Façade Grant Application
	B. Revenue Sharing MOU – Public Safety
	C. Revenue Sharing MOU – Senior Services
	D. Revenue Sharing MOU – Veterans
	E. Irrigation Services Proposals
	F. Landscape / Annual Flowers Proposals
	G. Rotary Park Improvement Project
	H. Municipal Parking Lease Renewals
	12.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION –
	13.   BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS


	ADP41F0.tmp
	PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN

	ADP7B80.tmp
	BACKGROUND
	DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND COMMONS AREA(S)
	PUBLIC SAFETY
	WASTE MANAGEMENT
	SIGNAGE AND HOURS OF OPERATION
	BEVERAGE CONTAINERS
	TEMPORARY COMMONS AREAS & SPECIAL EVENTS
	COMMUNICATION WITH SOCIAL DISTRICT PERMIT HOLDERS
	Exhibit A – Social District Logo
	Exhibit B – Social District Boundary & Commons Areas
	Exhibit C – Qualified Licensees and Addresses
	Third/Main, Inc.
	244 E. Third Street
	Imlay City, Michigan 48444
	Botana’s El Paiza, Inc.
	234 E Third Street
	Imlay City, Michigan 48444
	Imlay City Eagles
	170 S Almont Ave
	Imlay City, MI 48444



	ADP73F4.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting January 13, 2025

	Event Spread Sheet.2024.pdf
	Sheet2

	City Allocated Expenses.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADPA7E8.tmp
	BACKGROUND
	DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND COMMONS AREA(S)
	PUBLIC SAFETY
	WASTE MANAGEMENT
	SIGNAGE AND HOURS OF OPERATION
	BEVERAGE CONTAINERS
	TEMPORARY COMMONS AREAS & SPECIAL EVENTS
	COMMUNICATION WITH SOCIAL DISTRICT PERMIT HOLDERS
	Exhibit A – Social District Logo
	Exhibit B – Social District Boundary & Commons Areas
	Exhibit C – Qualified Licensees and Addresses
	Third/Main, Inc.
	244 E. Third Street
	Imlay City, Michigan 48444
	Botana’s El Paiza, Inc.
	234 E Third Street
	Imlay City, Michigan 48444
	Imlay City Eagles
	170 S Almont Ave
	Imlay City, MI 48444



	ADPD7.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting January 13, 2025

	ADPF60A.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting January 13, 2025




